
Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR
Tel No: 0113 3788662

Produced on Recycled Paper
A

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

MEETING TO BE HELD IN CIVIC HALL, LEEDS ON

TUESDAY, 22ND MAY, 2018 AT 10.00 AM

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors

N Buckley - Alwoodley;
K Groves - Middleton Park;

G Wilkinson - Wetherby;

Public Document Pack



B

A G E N D A

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No

PRELIMINARY PROCEDURES

 ELECTION OF THE CHAIR

2  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS

To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded)

(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting)



C

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No

3  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

1) To highlight reports or appendices which:
 
a) officers have identified as containing exempt 

information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report.

b) To consider whether or not to accept the 
officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information.

c) If so, to formally pass the following 
resolution:-

RESOLVED – That the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of those parts of the agenda 
designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information

2) To note that under the Licensing Procedure 
rules, the press and the public will be 
excluded from that part of the hearing where 
Members will deliberate on each application 
as it is in the public interest to allow the 
Members to have a full and frank debate on 
the matter before them.

4  LATE ITEMS

To identify any applications as late items of 
business which have been admitted to the agenda 
for consideration

 (the special circumstances shall be identified in 
the minutes)



D

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No

5  DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS

To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.

HEARINGS

6  Little London 
and 
Woodhouse

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE FOR FREEDOM MILLS 
UNIT 47, WASHINGTON STREET, KIRKSTALL, 
LEEDS, LS3 1JQ.

To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration

1 - 48

7  Otley and 
Yeadon

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE FOR RESTAURANT, 152 
HARROGATE ROAD, YEADON, LEEDS, LS19 
6AH

To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration

49 - 
84

8  Little London 
and 
Woodhouse

APPLICATION TO VARY A PREMISES LICENCE 
HELD BY BOTANIST UNIT 2.42, 67 BOAR 
LANE, LEEDS, LS1 6HW

To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration

85 - 
114



E

Item
No

Ward Item Not
Open

Page
No

Third Party Recording 

Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not 
present to see or hear the proceedings either as they take 
place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those 
proceedings.  A copy of the recording protocol is available 
from the contacts named on the front of this agenda.

Use of Recordings by Third Parties – code of practice

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by 
a statement of when and where the recording was 
made, the context of the discussion that took place, 
and a clear identification of the main speakers and 
their role or title.

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording 
in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 
misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments 
made by attendees.  In particular there should be no 
internal editing of published extracts; recordings may 
start at any point and end at any point but the 
material between those points must be complete.



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Report of the Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee

Date: 22nd May 2018

Subject: Application for the grant of a premises licence for Freedom Mills 
Unit 47, Washington Street, Kirkstall, Leeds, LS3 1JQ. 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): Little London & Woodhouse

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues 

This is an application for the grant of a premises licence, made by Freedom Mills Ltd, for 
Freedom Mills Unit 47, Washington Street, Kirkstall, Leeds, LS3 1JQ. 

Responsible authorities and Ward Members have been notified of this application.

The application has attracted representations from responsible authorities.

This application was first listed for hearing on the 27th March. At the hearing the applicant 
requested an adjournment and the licensing sub-committee agreed to adjourn until the 24th 
April. The application was further adjourned on the 24th April until the 22nd May 2018. 

Report author: Miss Charlotte Deighton
0113 378 5029

Page 1

Agenda Item 6



2

1 Purpose of this report

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 ("the Act") for a new premises licence in respect of the above mentioned 
premises.

1.2 Members are required to consider this application due to the receipt of 
representations.

2 History of the premises

2.1 This is the first premises licence application for these premises.

3 The application

3.1 The applicant’s name is Freedom Mills Ltd. 

3.2 The proposed designated premises supervisor is Mr Kyle McSparron. 

3.3 In summary the application is for:

Performance of plays, Exhibition of a film, Indoor sporting events, Boxing or wrestling 
events, Performance of live music, Performance of recorded music, Performance of 
dance, Provision of facilities for making music, Provision of facilities for dancing, Anything 
of a similar description, Sale by retail of alcohol. 

Everyday 12:00 – 05:00

Late night refreshment 

Everyday 23:00 – 05:00
 
4 The operating schedule

4.1 The applicant proposes to promote the licensing objectives by taking the steps 
identified in the proforma risk assessment which is attached at Appendix A.

5 Location

5.1 A map which identifies the location of this premises is attached at Appendix B.

6 Representations

6.1 Under the Act representations can be received from responsible authorities or 
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of another 
person, must not be frivolous or vexatious.

Representations from Responsible Authorities

6.2 Representations have been received from the Licensing Department in their 
capacity as a responsible authority which may be found at Appendix C.

Page 2



3

6.3 West Yorkshire Police also made a representation to this application but 
agreements were reached with the applicant and was therefore withdrawn. A copy 
of the representation and the agreement may be found at Appendix D. 

Other representations

6.4 There are no other representations.

7 Licensing hours

7.1 Members are directed to paragraphs 6.8 to 6.15 of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy which states the criteria that will be applied to any decision for new 
applications or variations which include extending hours.

7.2 In brief the Policy states at 6.14 that restrictions may be made to the proposed 
hours of use where, after receiving relevant representations, the council considers 
it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to do so. 

7.3 The council will take into account the existing pattern of licensed premises in an 
area when considering what is appropriate to promote the objectives. Applications 
which are significantly out of character for a locality will need to demonstrate that 
granting the hours sought will not adversely impact on the licensing objectives.

7.4 A list of premises in the local area and their licensed hours and activities is 
provided at Appendix E.

8 Equality and diversity implications

8.1 At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and 
diversity. Any decision taken by the licensing subcommittee will be in accordance 
with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act 2003.

9 Options available to Members

9.1 The licensing subcommittee must take such of the following steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

 Grant the application as requested.
 Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering in 

any way the proposed operating schedule.
 Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates.
 Refuse to specify the said person as the designated premises supervisor. 
 Reject the whole or part of the application.

9.2 Members of the licensing subcommittee are asked to note that they may not reject 
the whole or part of the application merely because they consider it desirable to 
do so. It must be appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives.

Page 3



4

10 Background papers

 Guidance issued under s182 Licensing Act 2003
 Leeds City Council Statement of Licensing Policy

Page 4



Licensing Act 2OO3 _pRW

@ Leeds
crrY couNcil_

Proforma Risk Assessment V7

Please complete the details below:

Guidance about this document

The Licensing Authority recommends that you complete this specially designed pro forma risk

assessment to help you decide what should be entered in your operating schedule to show how
you will promote the four licensing objectives.
Whilst the Licensing Authority cannot insist that you use this document it takes the v¡ew that ¡t

assists responsible authorities in assessing the operating schedule, promotes discussions and

partnership working and will reduce the number of representations and hearings.

lf you do not use this risk assessment pro forma then you will need to demonstrate how you will
meet the licensing objectives by providing other supporting evidence via your operating schedule.

The Licensing Authority strongly recommends that you consult with the responsible authorities
early in the application process to ensure that the measures you are suggestlng are appropriate and

sufficient for your application. Contact details for the responsible authorities are in the guidance

noteintheapplicationpack. PleasecontactEntertainmentLicensingifyoucannotfindthis
information.

How to use this document

This document has four sections which correspond with the four licensing objectives. ln each

section you will find information on potentialcontrol measures (each with an individual code)

which we suggest may help you meet the four licensing objectives.
Run through the questions at the beginning of each section and consider the potential control
measures listed in the columns beneath.
lf you are happy to volunteer the control measures as part of your application place a tick in the

relevant box in the right hand column. You can then enter the corresponding codes in page 14 of
your application form in the boxes which match up with the licensing objectives or simply write
"see pro forma risk assessment". These measures will then appear on your licence.

1.

2.

3.

4.

L.

2.

3.

Applicant Name : Joshua Threlfall -r'ir i i\,, irl iitllþ,\'1" 1 t{;i::ilillii.¿
,'.i
',il

Business name: Freedom Mills Limited
1,...1''l i ì"i \ ¡"r¡ ""''

I

Business address: Unit 47 Washington Street
* ,r t Ê þ,i l.ûl tr.å

' ::t I +'l¡'¡u I

! r ', ''i :, ,1'"1l' ; f-'i'l
t ìi ì l '-''' ''' ' '" ' :;' ¡" '"'

l
.:

i _-...,-..... .. ....'

Postcode: LS3 ]"JQ

GN-E 142003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 1

Page 5

20046853
Text Box
      Appendix A



Crime and Disorder

CCTV

Does the premises have CCTV?

If YES:

Was ihe siting and standard agreed with West Yorkshire Police (WYP)?

Have you agreed a policy on the retention and security of the footage with WYP?

The premises have a duly licensed Data Controller under the Data Protection Act
L998

rf No:

Have you consulted WYP about whether CCTV should be installed?

(NB unless WYP have agreed CCTV is not required, a representation is likely)

YES /

Yts /
YES /
NO/

YES /

Suggested measures Code

A suitable Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system will be operational at the premises at all
times when licensable activities are being carried out and at any othertimes where
members of the public are present on the premises.

7PF001

The CCTV system will cover all areas of the premises occupied by the public under the terms
of the licence, including corridors and stairways (excluding WCs and changing rooms).

7Pt002

The CCTV system will cover the main entrance/s and exit/s and designated emergency
egress routes from the premises.

7PF003

The CCTV system will cover all external areas of the premises occupied by the public, i.e
queuing areas, beer gardens, smoking areas and car parks.

7Pt004

The location of CCTV cameras are identified on the site plan of the premises. No
amendments to the locations of the cameras will be made without prior consultation with
West Yorkshire Police/British Transport Police and the Licensing Authority

7PF005

The CCTV system will be of a satisfactory resolution quality which will enable the
identification of persons and activities, and other fine details such as vehicle registration
number plates.

7PF006

The CCTV system will contain the correct time and date stamp information 7Pt007

The CCTV system will have sufficient storage retention capacity for a minimum of 3L days'
continuous footage which will be of good quality.

7PF008

The CCW footage will be controlled and kept in a secure environment to prevent tampering
or unauthorised viewing. A record will be kept of who has accessed the system, the reason
why and when.

7PF009

GN-E 142003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 -Page2

Page 6



A designated member / members of staff at the premises will be authorised to access the
CCTV footage and be conversant with operating the CCTV system. At the request of an

authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority (under the Licensing

Act 2003) any CCTV footage, as requested, will be downloaded immediately or secured to
prevent any overwriting. The CCW footage material will be supplied, on request, to an

authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority.

7PF010

The data controller, underthe Data Protection Act L998, who is responsible for any CCTV

images caught on cameras on the premises wiii, on the iawfui request of an authorised
officer of a Responsible Authority (under the Licensing Act 2003), be downloaded
immediately, or where this is not possible, as soon as reasonably practicable, and supplied
to the requesting officer. Where the CCTV images are not supplied at the time of the
request being made the data controller will ensure that ¡t ¡s secured to prevent any
overwriting.

7PFOT1.

The CCTV system will be capable of securing relevant pictures for review or export at a later
date.

7PF012

The CCTV system will be adequately maintained and be capable of transporting recorded
material onto a r€{novable media.

7Pt0r3

The CCTV system replay software must allow an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority
or Responsible Authority to search the picture footage effectively and see all the
information contained in the picture footage.

7PF0t4

It must be possible to replay exported files immediately e.g. no re-indexing of files or
verification checks.

7PF015

Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS)

Willthe DPS generally be on site?

ls the DPS contactable in emergency?

lf the DPS is not to be generally on site, have you made arrangements to nominate
the supervisor in his/her absence?

ls the Supervisor's Register bound with consecutively numbered pages?

YES /

YES /

N/A/

YES/

Suggested measures Code

A Supervisor's Register will be maintained at the licensed premises, showing the names,

addresses and up-to-date contact details for the DPS and all personal licence holders.
7PF01.6

The Supervisors Register will state the name of the person who is in overall charge of the
premises at each time that licensed activities are carried out, and this information will be

retained for a period of twelve months and produced for inspection on request to an

authorised officer.

TPtO!7

GN-E 1A2003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 3

Page 7



Door Supervisors and Other Security Staff

Do you use registered door supervisors or security staff?

Are they Security lndustry Authority (SlA) registered?

Do you specify a minimum number of door supervisors?

lf YES, state the number of staff _2_Dependant on numbers _450_
Days (and times) employed Club Nishts ONLY De pendant on numbers_
ll-- rl-:- l----- --.----l .-.:rl- r^¡\rñ1nd5 Uils Ueelt dB,f eeu wtUt vv Y r f

Do you have a policy with the door supervisor or security company which covers:

¡ Vetting customers entering the premises?

. ls there a prominently displayed written search policy on the premises?

c Controlling customers entering, within or leaving the premises?

¡ Safeguarding the public within and immediately outside the premises?

- Àl-!:t -r rl-- --.-l:-- -¡ -.--- .-.--l-l- -:J-.-a-î. r\¡uLilylilB, vvf r dt If re edille5[ uppurIuf ilr,y ul df ry pf uuref I15 ur rf ¡Lrucf lr.5f

. Exclusion of persons who have had too much to drink or appear inclined to
disorder?

Do you have a Daily Record Register within which door supervisors/security staff
sign on and off duty?

ls the Daily Record Register bound with consecutively numbered pages?

Can you identify who was on duty at any particular time?

Do you have an lncident Report Register?

ls the lncident Report Register bound with consecutively numbered pages?

YES/

YES /
YES /

f EJ Y

YES /
YES /
YES /
YES /
I tJ '

YES /

YES /

YES /
YES /
YES /
YES /

Suggested measures Code

The minimum number of door supervisors for the premises is Variable dependant on events
a minimum of 2for any dance event.

7PF018

The Premises Licence Holder (PLH)/Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) will ensure that a

'Daily Record Register' is maintained on the premises by the door staff.
7PF019

The Daily Record Register will contain consecutively numbered pages, the full name and

registration number of each person on duty, the employer of that person and the date and

time he/she commenced duty and finished duty (verified by the ¡ndividual's signature).

7PF020

The Daily Record Registerwill be retained on the premisesfora period of twelve months
from the date ofthe last entry.

7PF021.

Security staff/designated supervisors will be familiar with the premises policy concerning
the admission, exclusion and safeguarding of customers whilst in the premises.

7PFO22

The PLH/DPS will ensure that an lncident Report Register is maintained on the premises to
record incidents such as anti social behaviour, admissions refusals and ejections from the
premises.

7Pt023

GN-E L42003 Proforma Risk Assessmenl v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 4

Page 8



The lncident Report Register will contain consecutively numbered pages, the date time and
location of the incident, details of the nature of the incident, the names and registration
numbers of any door staff involved or to whom the incident was reported, the names and
personal licence numbers (if any) of any other staff involved or to whom the incident was
reported, the names and numbers of any police officers attending, the police incident and /
or crime number, names and addresses of any witnesses and confirmation of whether there
is CCTV footage of the incident.

7Pt024

The lncident Report Register will be produced for inspection immediately on the request of
an authorìsed officer.

7Pt025

Drugs and Offensive Weapons

Do you have a policy and procedure to prevent use of illegal drugs or weapons (e.g

a search policy)?

Has this been agreed with WYP?

Does the policy include:

. recording any search

. seiz¡ng drugs/weapons found

. a purpose made secure receptacle for items seized

o informing the police of any search and seizure

r prominently display notices to inform customers of the policy

YES /

YES /

NO/

YES /
YES /
YES /
YES /

Suggested measures Code

A policy for searching patrons at the entrance to prem¡ses will be adopted and prominently
displayed on the premises.

7Pt026

The PLH/DPS will inform West Yorkshire Police as soon as practicably of any search resulting
in a seizure of drugs or offensive weapons.

7PF027

A suitable purpose-made receptacle for the safe retention of illegal substances will be
provided and arrangements made for the safe disposal of its contents as agreed with West
Yorkshire Police or British Transport Police.

7PF028

Notices will be prominently displayed at the entrances of the premises which state

o a search will be conducted as a condition of entry to premises;

lncidents of crime and disorder will be reported to the police and a full recorded entry
will be made in the incident report register.

Entry to the premises will be refused to any person who appears to be drunk, acting in a
threatening manner or is violent; or appears to be under the influence of drugs.

entrywill be refused to any person who has been convicted of an offence of
drunkenness, violent or threatening behaviour or the use or distribution of illegal
su bsta n ces

a

o

O

7Pt029

GN-E 142003 Proforma Rìsk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 5

Page 9



Communication

Responsible Sale of Alcohol

Do you subscribe to a form of communication link (radio/text/pager system). The

system shall be recognised by the current Business Crime Reduction Partnership for
the city, Leeds City Council and West Yorkshire Police.

Has this been agreed with WYP?

NO/

YES r'

Sr rqoactpd mêacr rroc Code

There will be a communication link via radio to other venues in the city centre. This will be
+ho crrc+am ra¡nan¡ca¡l hrr +ha ¡¡¡rron+ A,,cinocc l-rima Þa¡lr,¡+inn D¡rtnarchin fnr +ha ¡itrr
U'L JyJrL"' ¡vLv6"'JLu vy U'L Lu' J¡"¡, 

'v' 
r"ç !'!y,

Leeds City Council and West Yorkshire Police

7PF030

Such communication link will be kept in working order at alltimes when licensable activities
are taking place

7PFO3T

The communication link will be available to the Designated Premises Supervisor or other
-^*i-^¡^l ^..^^-,:^^- ^^l L^ *^^¡¡^-^l L., +L^+ ^¡ ^Il ¡:*^^ ¡L^+ li^^-^^l ^^+i.,i+:^-lluililildLtru Juptrtvl)ul dilu uE iltuillLvrEu uy Llrdt pEr)uil dt clil tIlrEJ t¡rdL ltLcil)gu dLtrvrtrt)

are being carried out.

7PFO32

Any police instructions or directions given via the link will be complied with whenever given 7PF033

All incidents of crime or disorder will be reported via the link to an agreed police contact
point.

7PtO34

Proof of Aee

Have you adopted a proof of Age Scheme ?

Have all staff been instructed ofthe steps required to prevent under age sales of
a lcoho l?

Glass and Bottles

Do you have a policy for the frequent collection of glasses and bottles?

Do you take steps to prevent glasses/bottles being removed from the premises, e.g.

instruction to door/bar staff, display of notices?

Do you use plastic or toughened polycarbonate (or similar) drinking glasses/bottles
when necessary?

Alcohol Designated Public Places Orders

lf your premises are in the area of an Alcohol Designated Public Places Order
(DPPO), do you prominently display notices advising customers of the Order and its
effects?

YES /
YES /

NlAl
N/A./

YES /

N/A./

GN-Ê L42003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 6

Page 10



Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS staff will ask for proof of age from any person appearing to be under the age of
21 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the premises.

7PF035

or

The PLH/DPS staff will ask for proof of age from any person appearing to be under the age of
1E .^,L^ ^++^"-^+ê +^ ^.,-^L^^^ ^l^^L^l -r ¡L^ --^-^:-^-¿J vvtrv ollsrilpr) LU purLrtd5E dtLUilur dI Lilc l.,lcilt¡5tr5.

7PF036

The PLH/DPS staff will ask for acceptable evidence (as agreed by WYP / WYISS) from any
person appearing to be under the age of 2L who attempts to purchase alcohol at the
premises.

7PFO37

or

The PLH/DPS staff will ask for acceptable evidence (as agreed by WYP / WYTSS) from any
person appearing to be under the age of 25 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the
premises.

7PF038

Glass and Bottles

Drinks, open bottles and glasses will not be taken from the premises at anytime. Empty
bottles and glasses will be collected regularly and promptly. Glass and other sharp objects
will be stored and disposed of safely using suitable receptacles. Receptacles will be secured
and not accessible to the customers.

7PF039

N/A

The PLH/DPS will prominently display not¡ces which inform customers that open bottles or
glasses may not be taken off the premises.

7PFO40 N/A

Plastic ortoughened polycarbonate (orsimilar) glasses/bottles will be used in all areas of
the club.

7PF041

Plastic or toughened polycarbonate (or similar) glasses/bottles will be used when requested
by West Yorkshire Police / British Transport Police (e.g. football match days)

7Pt042 N/A

Alcohol Desienated Public Places Orders

Notices indicating the existence and effect of an Alcohol Designated Public Places Order will
be prominently displayed at the exits to the premises.

7PF043

Membershio of a Recoenised Bodv
Do you belong to a Licensees Association /Body

lf YES, please state which body..PUBWATCH LEEDS Clry CENTRE

Exclusion from Premises

YES /
YES /

Do you operate a system of excluding customers who are known to cause
problems?

YES /

If YES NO/
o is this your own system or

a system run by a local licensees bodyo YES /

GN-Ë 1A2003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 -Page7

Page 11



Dispersal Policv

Do you have a written dispersal policy (e.g. A policy on how you disperse your
clientele from your premises to reduce the risk of anti social behaviour)

If YES:

¡ Was this agreed with WYP (and BTP where applicable)?

. Are all bar and door staff trained on the policy?

YES /

NO/
YES /

Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS will belong to a recognised trade body or Pub Watch Scheme where one exists,

whose aims include the promotion of the licensing objectives
7PtO44

The PLH/DPS will operate to a written dispersal policy which ensures the safe and gradual

dispersal of customers from the premises. The policy will be agreed with WYP. The PLH/DPS

will ensure that staff receive training on the policy.

7PFO45

ls your premises predominantly a restaurant?

Prior to the submission of your application it is recommended that you consult with
the West Yorkshire Police on your proposals to operate as a restaurant. The

discussions should be to agree the number of covers to be set aside and your
proposals for service.

NO/

Suggested measures Code

The premises shall be and remain predominantly food led 7Pt046

An agreed number of covers will be maintained at all times the premises are operating
The number of covers will be

7Pt047

At any time that the premises licence has effect the sale of alcohol for consumption on the
premises will be ancillary to the service of table meals

7Pt048

Waiter/waitress service will be in operation throughout the premises in relation to orders
for food and/or alcohol

7PF049

The sale/supply of alcohol shall only be made to accompany the sale of food. This does not
preclude the sale/supply of alcoholto a person waiting to be seated in the restaurant or at
the conclusion of the meal.

7PF050

Entertainment of an Adult Nature e.g. Str¡p Tease Dancing or Nude Dancing

Do you provide any entertainment consisting of striptease or nude dancing including
where dancers are wearing 'see through' clothing or the show includes sexual
stimu lation?

Please note that should you provide relevant entertainment more than 12 occasions
per 12 month period or more frequently than monthly you will be required to apply
for a Sex Establishment licence.

NO/

GN-E LA2003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page B

Page 12



Suggested measures Code

Entertainers will be aged no less than 18 years. 7PF051

Price lists will be clearly displayed at each table and at each entrance to the premises 7PF052

Entertainers will only be present in the licensed area in a state of nudity when they are
performing on stage or providing a private dance.

7PF053

---rl-- -------:--- l-- --l-- - -rr,--- - t !rAfry fJef 5()f r ufr rf te pf efIil5e5 wfto cafr ue ou5erveu rf ofn out5tue tfte prerIil5e5 wilt De

properly and decently dressed.
I YrUS+

Entertainers will only perform on the stage area, or in areas identified on the plan attached
to the licence.

7PF055

Relevant enterta¡nment will only be performed by the entertainer. There must be no
audience participation. There must be no physical contact between entertainers.

7PF056

Customers will not touch the breasts or genital area of entertainers. Entertainers will not
directly or indirectly touch the breasts or genital area of customers.

7PFO57

Any performance will be restricted to dancing and the removal of clothes. There will not be
any other form of sexual activity or stimulation which, for the avoidance of doubt, includes
kissing.

7PF058

Sex toys must not be used and penetration of the genitalarea by any means must not take
place.

7PF059

Customers will not be permitted to throw money at the entertainers. 7PF060

All areas used for private dances must be visible to supervision and must not have closing
doors or curtains that prevent performances from being observed.

7Pt061.

All areas used for private dances must be directly supervised by either a SIA registered door
supervisor, or a member of staff who has direct contact with SIA registered door supervisors
working on the premises at all times the booths/areas are in use. Direct supervision does
not include remote supervision by CCTV.

7PF062

GN-E L42003 Proforma R¡sk Assessment v7 Revised November2013 - Page 9

Page 13



Public Safety

Management Arrangements

Suggested measures Code

Before opening to the public, checks will be undertaken to ensure all access to the premises

are clear for emergency vehicles. Regular checks will be undertaken when the premises is

open.

7PF063

Wr¡tten records of all acciderrts and safety incidents irrvolving mernbers of the publicwill be

kept. These will be made available at the request of an authorised officer.
/ Ytuo+

During opening hours the cellar door must be kept locked or adequately supervised to
prevent unauthorised access by the public.

7PF065 N/A

A suitably trained and competent person must ensure regular safety checks of the premises

including decorative and functional fixtures, floor surfaces and equipment (including

electrical appliances) to which the public may come into contact are undertaken. Records of
rl---- --¡-r.. -l---l-- ------r l-- l--.-r -.--l .----l- ----:l-l-l- 1-.-t.--.- --r:--- l--- -.- ---Ll--.-r---l -11r--lnese safety crtecKS must ¡Je KepI änü rnaüe avaiiaúie Ior tnSpecUort oy aÍi autrtoilsecl oïricer.

7PF066

Th^ Dp^mi.^. I ¡^^ñ^^ h^l,.,l^..^,¡ll ^^+ ^ll^.., +k^ .-l^ ^..,.^^1., ^l ttt nnnl lli^1...r, ^¡ +L¡r r¡s r rcrrilJcJ LrLc¡¡Lc rrvrus¡ vvrrr rrvl arrvvv rrrc Jotg vr JupPry vr Lgõ,o¡ r r¡6rrJ ur¡ rtrg

premises.

1DCrìC.1

Empty bottles and glasses will be collected regularly paying particular attention to balcony
areas and raised levels.

7PF068

Electrical installations will be inspected on a periodic basis (at least every 3 years or at a
frequency specified in writing) by a suitably qualified and competent person. lnspection
records/certificates will be kept and made available at the request of an authorised officer
lf used, any temporary electrical wiring and distributions will also be inspected. lnspect¡on
records/certificates will be kept. These will be made available at the request of an

authorised officer.

7PF069

One of the following protective measures shall be used for all socket-outlets which may be

used forthe connection for lighting, video orsound amplification equipment and display
models:

a) Each socket-outlet circuit will be protected by a residualcurrent device having a

rated residual operating current not exceeding 30mA, or
Each individualsocket-outlet will be protected by an integral residualcurrent device
having a rated residual operating current not exceeding 30m4.

b)

The current operation of all residualcurrent devices will be checked regularly by pressing

thetestbutton. lfthedevicedoesnotswitchoffthesupply,anelectricalcontractorshould
be consulted. At the same time action should be taken to prohibit the use of socket outlets
associated w¡th a faulty residual current device.

tPFO70

N/A

GN-E 142003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revrsed November 2013 - Page 10

Page 14



General Housekeepiny'g

Fire Safety

Do you have written procedures for the inspection of:

o Furnishings and fabrics

. Suspended decorations/lights/amplification systems

. Guardingto sta¡rs/balconies/landings/ramps

- 1-.-)rLr-.- ^1tl^-- ^-..-!^---
' LUilUil,luf I Ut ilUUf 5Uf tdLeS

¡ Provision of safety glazing

YES/

YES /
N/A./

TfJ V

N/A./

Suggested measures Code

Regular safety checks of guarding to stairs, balconies, landings and ramps will be

undertaken, and a supervision policy will be maintained to prevent people from
inappropriate behaviour, including climbing which may lead to a fall from height

7Pt07t

Safety glass that is impact resistant or shielded to protect it from impact will be used in all

areas where the public may come into contact with it.
7PFO72

A written spillage policy will be kept to ensure spillages are dealt with in a timely and safe
manner

7PtO73

The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 requires employers and other responsible persons to make a

'suitable and sufficient' assessment of the risks from fire in licensed premises and how they affect the safety of
their employees and other persons who may be on or in the vicinity of the premises. Where a licence is in force
the responsible person must record the significant findings of the risk assessment.

ln compiling a fire risk assessment you must consider the following:

" The number of persons using the premises
. Means of escape
o Fire alarms
e Emergency Lighting
c Fire Fighting Equipment

' Fire Exit Notices
o Safety Precautions

For further advice regarding fire precautions and how to comply with your legal duties under The Regulatory
Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, please refer to the guides listed below which are available to download, free
of charge, from:

htt ps://www.qov. u k/wo rkp lace-f ire-safetv-vo u r-res po ns ibilities/f ire-saf etv-a dvice-d ocu me nts

GN-E 142003 Proforma R¡sk Assessment v7 Revised November 201 3 - Page 1 1

Page 15



Suggested Measures Code

The premises have a current Fire Risk Assessment 7PF074

Refreshments

Dn rrnl nrênârê hnt fond / drinkç in nrovimitrr to the nuhlir?r'*r*' Nl^,/

ll Yh5:

Has the risk of scalding or burns been assessed?

r\/A v

Suggested measures Code

Members of the public will be prevented from accessing hot food and drink preparation
areas to prevent risk of scald or burns.

7PF075

First Aid

Do you have staff trained in First Aid?

lf YES, please state numbers

Do you provide facilities for treatment of minor injuries (e.g. First Aid box)?

Do you have procedures for dealing with customers who are unwell including those
who appear to be affected by drugs / alcohol)?

YES '/

YES /
YES /

Suggested measures Code

A suitably trained First Aider or appointed person will be provided at all times when the
premises are open.

7PtO76

An appropriately qualified medical practitioner will be present throughout any sporting
entertainment.

7PtO77

Staff holding a current qualification issued by a recognised national body in rescue and life
safety procedures will be stationed and remain in the vicinity of the water at all material
times.

7PtO78

Adequate and appropriate First Aid equipment and materials will be available on the
premises at all times.

7PFO79

A procedure for dealing with unwell members of the public will be in place including those
who appear to be affected by alcohol or drugs. Staff will be appropriately trained in such

proced ures.

7PF080

GN-E 142003 Proforma R¡sk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 -Page 12

Page 16



Special Effects

Do you use specialeffects on the premises, e.g. strobes, lasers, smoke machines or YES /
fireworks?

lf yes, please give details: smoke machines, flashing lights and strobe lighting and lasers may be present on

occasion

Smoke machinesflashing lights and Lasers on club nights and maybe art exhibitions

Suggested measures Code

Awritten health and safety policy covering all aspects of the safe use of strobes, lasers,

smoke machines or any other special effects, will be provided and staff will be appropriately
tra i n ed.

7PF081

No strobes, lasers orsmoke machines will be used at the premises unless there is a clearly
displayed warning at the entrance to the premises that such equipment is in use.

7PF082

GN-E L42003 Proforma R¡sk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 13

Page 17



Public Nuisance

Noise and Vibration

Noise and vibration

ldentify the potentialsources of noise and vibration which apply to your premises:

. Amplified music '/
¡ Unamplified music '/
o Singing and speech '/
¡ Waste disposal, including bottle bins '/
o Plant and machinery, including extract¡on systems
. Food preparation
¡ Cleaning

ldentify where sources of noise may occur outside your premises:

" Beer garden
. Play area
. Car park
¡ Temporary structure
¡ Plant and equipment

ldentify which measures are in place/proposed:

¡ Soundproofing
¡ Air conditioning to allow windows to be kept closed
¡ Sound limiters
¡ Use of lobby doors
r Cooling down period with reduced music volum e '/
o Fixed and appropriate times for collection of waste '/
o Restricted use of outdoor areas /
c No external loud speakers '/

Are the premises located near noise sensitive properties, e.g. residential areas, NO/
residential homes, hospitals?

Applicants should refer to the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 which has amended the Noise

Act 1996 to introduce "night noise offences" for licensed premises in completing this section.

Suggested measures Code

Licensable activities will be conducted and the facilities for licensed activities will be

designed and operated so as to prevent the transmission of audible noise or perceptible
vibration through the fabric of the building or structure to adjoining properties

7PF083

Noise from a licensable activity at the premises will be inaudible at the nearest noise

sensitive premises.
7PFOB4

There will be no external loudspeakers 7PF085

Bottles will not be placed in any external receptacle after 23.00 hours and 07.00 hours to
minimise noise disturbance to neighbouring properties

7PF086

Noise from plant or machinery will be inaudible at the nearest noise sensitive premises
duringthe operation of the plant or machinery. Plant and machinery will be regularly
services and maintained to meet this level.

7PF087

GN-E L42003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 14

Page 18



The PLH/DPS will ensure patrons use beer gardens, externalareas and play areas in a
manner which does not cause disturbance to nearby residents and business in the vicinity
Patrons will not use such areas after 21:00.

7PF088

The PLH/DPS will ensure patrons use beer gardens, externalareas and play areas in a

manner which does not cause disturbance to nearby residents and business in the vicinity
Patrons will not use such areas after 22:00

7PF089

The PLH/DPS will ensure patrons use beergardens, externalareas and play areas in a
irairner wiiich does iiüt aäuse disiuri.¡ance to rreari.ly residents anci business in the vicinity
Patrons will not use such areas after 23:00

7PF090

The activities of persons using the external areas will be monitored after 23:00hrs and they
will be reminded to have regard to the needs of local residents and to refrain from shouting
and anti social behaviour etc when necessary,

7Pt09t

The PLH/DPS will adopt a "cooling down" period where music volume is reduced towards
the closing t¡me of the premises.

7Pt092

Does the premises sell takeaway food, drinks or other produce/packaging which
may generate litter/waste?

lf YES, please identifythe steps taken to prevent nuisance caused by l¡tter:

NO/

..Nobody is allowed outside with any plastic bottles or glass and rubbish is tidied away each evening

Provision of litter bins

Display of notices to customers
Warnings/advice on packaging

lnstructions to staff to periodically clear litter from the street around the
premises

Other (please specify)

a

a

tr
tr
tr
tr

tra

Litter

Transport/Pedestrian Movement

Do you have a procedure to ensure that local residents and businesses are not
disturbed by customers entering and or leaving your premises:

lf YES what steps do you take to ensure that the procedure(s) works?

N/A./

Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS will ensure that litter arising from people using the premises is cleared away
regularly and that promotional materials such as flyers do not create litter

7PF093

GN-E 142003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Rev¡sed November 2013 - Page 15

Page 19



Suggested measures Code

Clear and legible notices will be displayed at exits, car parks and other circulatory areas

requesting patrons to leave the premises quietly having regard to the needs of local
residents, in particular emphasising the need to refrain from shouting, slamming car doors,
sounding horns and loud use of vehicle stereos and anti-social behaviour.

7Pt094

SIA Registered door staff will be employed and used where queues are likely to form to
manage the queues and ensure:
ñrrarroc rra racl'ri¡ta¡l tn ¡nr¡lnno¡l âraâ< tô nrê\rênl tham nh<frrrrfino fnntnethc end snillino
<v!s!J

out onto roads, and to keep noise and obstructions away from residential property.

7PF095

The premises supervisor and any door supervisors will monitor the activity of persons

leaving the premises and remind them of their public responsibilities where necessary
7PF096

A facility will be provided for customers to order Hackney taxis/private hire vehicles.

Telephone numbers for taxi firms/private hire companies will be displayed ¡n a prom¡nent
position on the premises.

7PtO97

GN-E 142003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 16

Page 20



Protection of Children from Harm

Entertainment of an Adult Nature

Under Age Sales of Alcohol

Do you provide entertainment of a sexual or adult nature (including strong or
offensive language)?

lf so, do you only provide the adult entertainment at certain times/days of the
week?

ls your premises located near to premises which are children orientated?

NO/

NO/

NO/

Suggested measures Code

People under L8 (including staff) will not be admitted to the premises at any time when
entertainment of a sexual or adult nature is being provided.

7PF098

The PLH/DPS will provide clear signage that entertainment of an adult nature is occurring
which is not suitable for under L8s.

7PF099

Measures will be put in place for ensuring non-admission to persons under l-8 years of age

when entertainment of an adult nature is taking place, such as door supervision and age
checks (including staff)

7PF100

The PLH/DPS will not display outside the premises photographs or other images which
indicate and suggest that striptease or similar entertainment takes place on the premises

7PF101

Any person on the premises who can be observed from outside the premises will be
properly and decently dressed.

7PFt02

Any written, visual or auditory advertisement material, posters, signage or window display
must not be of a sexually explicit orsuggestive nature, will not contain images ortext of a

sexually explicit, obscene oroffensive nature and must be approved bythe council in

writing.

7PF103

Do the premises sell or supply alcohol? YES /

Suggested measures Code

People under 18 years of age will not be admitted 7PFt04

Gambling

ls there a strong element of gambling on the premises? NO/

Suggested measures Code

People under l-8 (including staff) will not be admitted to the premises at any time when
gambling is taking place.

7PF1"05

GN-E L42003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 17

Page 21



or

There will be sufficient physical screening of the relevant entertainment from view of those
under 18 years.

7PF1.06

Performers Under 18

Do entertainment performances include performances by children and young YES r'
persons under L8 years of age?

NOTE The Chiidren (Performance) Regulations 1968 as amended - continue to appiy but are not conditions on
the licence as that would be duplication

Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS will provide an adequate number of suitable adult supervisors who can
provide care forthe children as they move from stage to dressing room etc, and to ensure
that all children can be accounted for in case of an evacuation or an emergency.

7PF107

The venue will be suitable to accommodate safely the numbers of children intended 7PF108

All supervisors and crew will receive instruction on the fire procedures applicable to the
venue prior to the arrival of the children

tPF109

The PLH/DPS willensure that allspecialeffects e.g. flashing lights, dry ice, smoke etc are

suitable for the children involved in the performance.
7PtL10

Ëntertainment and/or Facilities Specifically Provided for Children

ls any entertainment/faci lities specifica lly provided for children?

lf yes are the children unaccompanied or supervised by staff without parental
presence (including where parents are elsewhere in the licensed premises).

Do you provide young persons discos or similar entertainment?

NO/

N/Al

NO/

Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS will ensure that an adult supervisor is stationed in the area(s) or levels which
are occupied by children. The supervisors will be placed in the vicinity to ex¡ts to the
premises. There will be one supervisor per 50 children at all times.

7PtLtL

For closely seated audiences, i.e. theatres and cinemas, the ratio of supervisors will be L per
25 children, provided that where the children are in the charge of an adult organiser such

organisers will be regarded as attendantsto an extent not exceeding half of the numberof
attendants required by the above condition 4PF088.

-tPFLr2

No child will be permitted to occupy the front row of any balcony gallery or tier, unless

accompanied by and in the charge of a person who appears to have attained the age of 16

yea rs.

7PF113

Close supervision will be held when children use balconies and other raised areas 7PFLL4

GN-E L42003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 201 3 - Page 18

Page 22



Upon egress from the premises the Licensee will deploy staff on exit doors and within the
vicinity of the premises to ensure the safe dispersalof children and the premises will not
close until all children have left the area.

7PF1.1.5

Child Protection Measures

Do you have a system for ensuring the suitability of staff who work closely with
ch ild ren ?

lf YES state measures used:

N/^./

Are your premises located near any adult orientated premises e.g. an adult retail sex NO /
shop or amusement arcade?

Suggested measures Code

The PLH/DPS will perform the necessary background checks including relevant police checks

on all potential staff before offering them employment. The Licensee will report any child
related concerns to the police he/she has about potentialstaff, existing staff and customers.

7PF1L6

The PLH/DPS will ensure staff receive training to deal with unaccompanied children on the
premises and prevent them from harm.

7Pt1.17

The PLH/DPS will comply with the written guidance for protecting children from harm issued

by Leeds City Council, Department of Social Services.

7Pt'J,18

The PLH/DPS will liaise with any adult orientated premises close to his/her premises which
the Licensee suspects are at risk of admitting underage children from his/her own premises

TPFl_19

GN-E L42003 Proforma Risk Assessment v7 Revised November 2013 - Page 19

Page 23



Page 24



River Aire

Factory

The

Leeds and Liverpool Canal

Works

Depot

Studios

Industrial

Sl

KIRKSTALL ROAD

93

91

38

99

18

87

Lock

31.1m

34.7m

37.5m

FB

155

103

143

141
104

153

102

147

Gov

Chy

W
A

S
H

IN
G

TO
N

 S
TR

E
E

T

ESS

Tank

Shelter

Tanks

Works

Works

Works

Works

87

37.5m

1Park

Tannery

Maybrook

Te
le

vi
si

on
 S

tu
d

Television

Cedan Hous

97

Car Pa

13
0

Gas

Spring Gardens

ST
U

D
IO

 R
O

AD

Overflow

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

A
IR

E
 P

LA
C

E

Not Set

On licence

Off licence

Late night
refreshment

Other

Key
This map is based upon the Ordinance Survey’s digital data with the 
permission of the Ordinance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationary Office

© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and 
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings

Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 1000019567
© Crown Copyright all rights reserved Page 25

20035990
Rectangle

20035990_1
Rectangle

20035990_2
Text Box
Appendix B



This page is intentionally left blank



Date: 1't March 2018

Dear Sirs

RE: Freedonr Mlñl[s, Washlngtor'¡ $tneet, Kinkstalå LS3 1JQ.

APPLICATIOT{ FOR A GR.ANT OF A PR.EMISES L¡CENCE _ TIGENSING AGT 2OO3:
!.I CE Ni S I N G AUThIORITY ¡.ETTE R, O F R,E PRES E NTAT¡O T{.

Thank you for submitting your application for the above premises, received at the address
above on the 31st January 2018.

The Licensing Authority is of the opinion that your application contains insufficient information
about how you intend to meet the licensing objectives. We therefore confirm that we are
submitting a formal representation against your application on the grounds of Public Safety.

We do not consider that the premises are suitable for the licensable activities as described in
the application. Fuller details will be provided once there has been an opportunity to access the
premises and review the internal infrastructure and emergency egress provisions.

We respectively request that the Licensing Sub Committee considers our Representation prior
to coming to a decision on the application.

Yours faithfully

Mr Michael Waters
Senior Liaison & Enforcement Officer
Ëntertainment Licensing

Freedom Mills Ltd
Unit 47
Washington Street
Kirkstall
Leeds
LS3 1JQ

CITY COUNCIL
Elections, Licensing & Regístnation
Civic Hall
Leeds LS1 1UR

Our Ref: 480/SJL/MW/LIC/PRÊ\A1041 431001
Your Ref:
Contact: Michael Waters
Tei: 0ii3 3785029
Fax: 01133367124
Email: Michael.waters@leeds.gov.uk

Leeds

,¿t- -lr,V ÈJ,

u" .Ë

www.leeds.gov.uk General Enquiries: 0113 222 4444 i:iïÌirllu0 t¡: t:!!{( ¡til-t.:

   Appendix C

Page 27



West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue

Frsh!¡bitio¡T Notice

Page 28



Wlest V*rkshine
Fire & Rescue Service

cFoAo07b

Ref:142411
Date: I March 201g

  

Freedom Mills Limited
Freedom Mills Unit 47
Washington Street
Leeds
LS3 1JQ

West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service
Fire Protection
Service Delivery Centre
Oakroyd Hatt
Birkenshaw
BD11 2DY

Tel. 0113 3875238
Mobile: 07827321715
Em a il : fire. s_afety(Ðwestyorksfire. g ov. u k
Officer dealing: James Calt-_------._..---.-.*

URGENT' ACTION REQU RED

Dear Sir

Prohibition Notice
The Regulatony Reforrn (Fire safety) order 2005: Articre 31
Premises: Freedon'r Milrs washington street KirkstaH Leeds Ls3 ,rJe
Responsible Person: Freedom Mills !_imited

This is a relevant notice for the purpose of the Environment & safety lnformation Act
1 9BB

The enclosed Prohibition Notice served on your premises on B March 201g requiresyour immediate attention.

The west Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority is of the opinion that the risk topeople in case of fire in the premíses is so hígh t'hat the u"ã ot the premises must berestricted.

Failu'ane to con'rp{y witÍ'¡ a prohihåtion motiee is as.r offemee.
T'he Authonlfy- rmay pnosecute âffiyone failimg to aom.rply wlth the restnictionnotl-ee; ir.lctuding amyene using the premises [m thne"mamnen to whfieh thisr¡otiee s"efiates.

Note: During the above works and until such time as the restriction notice iswithdrawn the duties specified berow shail be acteo upãn.'- 
"' '

only the minÍmum number of workers necessary shat be emproyed.AdditÍonar training and information shail ne prôviJðá tð ff,or" compreting the

ÅÀeü<img Wes? Yorkshíræ Sæfer
v\/w\^/.\^/estyoi"ks f ire, g av. u k

Page 29



Route to Appeal

You can legally appeal to this notice (under articfe 35 of the said order). you mustappeal to the magistrates court, for the area in which the premises ís situated, within21 days from the date shown on the notice. Bringing .nïóp""r does not have theeffect of suspending this notÌce, unless the court so directs.

lf yol-wish to clarify what you are being asked to do in the schedule you can contactthe Officer named above.

lf you wish to challenge what you have been asked to do inr^.* ^,.. ,--,
appeat) vou can contact the Fire proieãtion Manager ,"'ns ilåtffitJ::Låiit;ltelephone number detailed above and state that you wish to make an informalappeal (quotÍng the reference number and date ortnJ lvàtnej.

works in the potentialdangers present.
Allworkers to be ínstructeã as io the escape routes avairabre.complete a risk assessment of the necessary works and how they are to becompleted.

9:l"ldï temporary means of raising the atarm by automatic means.Ensure the access and exit routes are maintained so as to be avairabre andclear of debris.
strict control of ignition sources must be enforced permit to work required forany hot work.
lnstruct and nominate a competent person as to the faciríties avairabre andmethod of cailing the fire service in thé event of a fire_

Yo¡'¡ must remedy the specified matters before the restricted part(s) of thepremises may be ¡¡sed.

Acknowledgement

You are required to acknowledge your receipt of this Notice.
You can acknowledge receipt by:

o Ema.il fire'safetv@wçstvorksfire.oov.uk confirming the information stated on thelast page of this letter; or 
------

" compreting, signing and returníng the rast page of this retter.

Yours faithfully

Nigel Charlston

Authorised Fire Safety lnspecting Officer
on behalf of, and dury appointed by the west yorkshire Fíre & Rescue Authority
cc:        

Page 30



I,JRGENT PROHIEITION NOTICE ACT¡ON REQUTRED
REGULATORY REFORM (F¡RE SAFETV) ORDER 2OOà: ÀNiICIE ¡r

I:II_  l of Freedom Mifls Limited (as person having controt of thepiemi  responsibie person)
Address: Freedom Mills unit 47 washington street Leeds LS3 1Jo

Premises to which this Notice relates: Freedom Mills Washington Street Leeds LS3
1JQ

The West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority is of the opinion that use of thepremises to which this notice relates involves a rist< to people so serious that use ofthe premíses ought to be restricted"

The use of
premises to which
this notice relates

Item 1) Not used for purposes of eniertainment, recreation or
instruction or for pu rposes of any club, socieÇ or association;

andis restricted to
the following
extent:

Item 2) Without prejudice
purpose involving access

ublic, whether on

to Ítem 1) above, not used for any
to the premises by members of the
nt or otheruvise.

The measures
which must be
taken to remedy
the matters are:

1. Provide adequate means fo r gtvtng warning in case of
fire. An appropriate standard can be found in BS 5B3g_
Part 1: Code of practice for design, installation,
commissioning and maintenance of systems in non_
domestic premises.

2. Provide suiiable emergency lighting from all occupied
parts of the premises. Further advice on the provisÍon of
emergency líghting can be found in Fire safety risk
assessment: large places of assembly Ref; ISBN
9781851 128211 and avaitabte at:
https.//www. gov. u[</government/publ ications/fire_safety_
risk-assess m ent-large-p laces-of-assembly

Matter(s) which
give nise to that
risk are:

and

lnadequate means of escape (escape routes, exits and
emergency lighting) in case of fire.

lnadequate means of giving warning in case of fire;

Page 31



The FireAuthority consíders it necessary for the proposals to compfy with theBuilding Reguiations 2000 or the latest version *r,.* tn¡s app¡¡es, and as a result theResponsible Person should contact the Local Authority lBuiiu'ing Control Department)
or an Approved lnspector, who will in due course consult with thè Fire Authority
Works carried out in accordance with any relevant requiremáni of these Regulationswill not be subject to further requirementá from the Fire Authority.

3. Provide adeq uate escape routes for the requíred
occupancy figure. Further advice on the provision of
escape routes can be found in Fire safety risk
assessment: large places of assembly Ref: ISBN
9781851128211 and availabte at:
https:/iwww. gov. uUgovernmenVpublications/fire-safety_
risk-assessment-large-p laces-of-assem bly

ïhe restriction takes effect from: B March 2aß at14:00 hours.
The premises are restricûed as stated until the specified matters have been
remedied.

Print Name:    
 
  

n hahalf af o-^1 ¡, ,L, ^--^i- !^) L. . Lt-rr uurrar¡ ur' di¡u uury a[Jpolnleq Þy lije vvesf Yotkshire Fire & Rescue Authority

Page 32



NOTES TO ACCOMPANY PROI.I¡B¡TION NOTICE
SERVED IJNDER ARTiCLE 31 OF TFIE

REGTJLATORY REFORM (F|RE SAFETY) ORÐER 2005

I ln any proceedings for an offence referred to in Note 1 where the commission ofan offence is due to the act or default of some other peÀon, then that person isguilty of the offence, and may be charged with and convícted of the offence.

2 Nothing in the order operates to afford an employer a defence in any criminalproceedings for a contravention by an employee.

3 Subject to Note 3, it is a defence for the person charged to prove that he/shetook all reasonable precautions and exercised due- dilÍgence to avo¡J inecommission of the offence. The defence does not apply to a failure to comptywith afiicle B(a) (D_uty to take general fíre precautions¡'oi árticte 12 (Etimination orreduction of risks from dangerous substances).

4 lf proceedings for an offence consisting of a failure to cornpiy with a duty orrequirement so far as is practicable or so far as ís reasonably pråcticaolã, ìi ¡s torthe accused to prove that it was not practicable or reasonably practicable to domore than was in fact done to satísfy t-he duty or requirement.

5 Please note that in order to satisfy the Environment and safety lnformation Act19BB the Fire and R,gs9ue Authority must enter defails of any prohibition noticeonto a register to which the public have access. lf you teel that such an entrywould disclose secret or confidential trade or manufacturing information tr,en yå,should appeal in writing to the authority within fourteén Jàys of the service of thisnotice.

6 The works or actions specified in the notíce are intended to reduce the excessiverisk (io a level at whích the risk is not so serious). uore satety may be required toreduce the risk to an acceptable level. The Fire ãno nesue Âuthórity."*åJ ir.,i,notice without prejudice to any other enforcement action that this ó¡. 
"ny 

àp,"',enforcement authority might take.

7 The Fire and Rescue Authority is willing to consider any proposals you may haveto remedy the matters specified in the notice by other,rí"ãn*.

Page 33



ENVIRONMEhIT ANÐ SAFETY INFORMATION ACT 1988

1 A notice which is relevant for the purposes of this Act (see Notice) will beincluded as an enlry.in a public regístàr, wr,¡cr, wíll be repi oy the west yorkshire
Fire & Rescue Authority. A rereîant notice is one, rrur,i"r, does not lróôrurequirements or prohibitions solely for the protectíon of'p"rrona at work.

2. The register entry shail be made within 14 days of either the right of appearagainst the notice expíring, or of such an appeat oeiÃf oisposed of. where anotice is cancelled on appeal no entry shall be made.

3' when an inspector is satisfied a relevant notice has been compfied with an entryshall be made in the register to show this. lf a notice ii witnorawn or amended theentry shall be deleted or amended. These atterations åi tn" registài shãll"oemade within 7 days.

4 Entries shall be kept in the register for a period of at reast 3 years.

5' lf you think that the entry for this notice on the register will disclose informationabout a trade secret or secret manufactur¡ng proiõr* yäu snouta give writtennotification to the west Yorkshire Fire & Res--cue Auttroiity within 14 days. Thewest Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority wilr Úren ir"n'ro entry, which in itsopinion will not revealthe secret, and serve this on you.

6. lf you are not satisfied wíth this draft entry you may appear wÍthin 14 days to thesecretary of state who may either oecioe tnat iíie äntf shourd be made asr{r¡ffad ^r ;f :f iurq¡t=u' {Jr, rr ¡r' rs considered it does not afford reasonable protectioÀ-to tÃesecret, the secretary of state may specify the form tù;it shourd take.

7 ' lî you make a written notification the West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority willnot make an entry in relation to the notice other than one which only specifiedyour name and address, identifies any place involved and specifies the ielevantlegal provisions. A.fuiler.."ttry will only be made when (a) you give your writtenconsent to the draft, or (b) where no consent is gíven àno tn" time alrowed forappeal to the seeretary of state has expired, or ic) on àppeat the secretary ofState has directed that an entry shall be made.

Page 34



Conr¡ne¡'¡ts, Complirnents and Cornplaints

West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority are fully committed to providing thehighest possible levels of service to the public of west yorkshire.

lf you do not have access to the internet you can contact the Service StandardsOfficer on 01274 655873.

should you wish to make comment on the standard of service you have receivedfrom us full details of the procedure are available on our website atwww'westyorksfire'gov.uk and search under customer service guide or by enteringthe following link and clicking on the guide;

Page 35



cFOA0oS

West Yorksl.lire Fire & Rescue Servíce
Fire Protection
Service Delivery Centre
Oakroyd Hall
Birkenshaw
BDIl 2DY

I (print name) acknowtedge
Restriction t¡oticãffiferenced 14241 1

receipt of the

d I confirm that the
ned in the notice are

My position in the organisation is
people with responsibilíty and I or control of the matters contai
aware of the need to address the matters raised

Sion¡rd
-,9.'-*

On behalf of (name of organisation)

Page 36



Br¡ilding Control

Email

Page 37



Los'¡qfellow, Sarnamtha

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Oldfield, Roger
07 March 2OI8 t6:29
Longfellow, Samantha; Waters, Michael
Sanderson, Christopher; Kendall, Paul

FW: Freedom Mills, Unit 47 Washington Street, Kirkstall,

Freedommills.doc

HiSam & Mick,

lhave checked with Paul Kendallin Planning. They do not have planning permission forthe proposed use

I also spoke to Chris Sanderson in Planning Enforcement, he has already written to them stating that Planning
Permission is required.(copy of letter attached)

There will also need to be an application for change of use underthe Building Regulations, which will need to
include:

i - adequate, means of escape provision in case of fire,
- spread of flame rating to walls and ceilings,

; - €ffì€rg€t'ìcy lighting
- access and egress for disable persons,
- adequate toilet facilities,
- ventilation etc.
-there may be other requirements depending upon what is proposed

Paul Kendall mentioned that the site was not wíthin the designated city centre entertainment zone

To obtain planning permission it is likely that they would need to show that a suitable venue could not be found
elsewhere in the city centre.

Kind regards

Roger Oldfield
Building Control Services N/lanager

Tel 01-L3 378794L
  

roger,j.o ldfield @ leeds.gov.uk

Fnom: Sanderson, Christopher
Sent: 07 March 2OL81"4:06

To: Oldfield, Roger < Roger.J.Oldfield @ leeds.gov. uk>
Subject: Freedom Mills, Unit 47 Washington Street, Kirkstall,

Hi Roger,

I enclose letter I sent to Freedom Mills

Chris Sanderson
Frincipal Compliance Officer

1

Page 38



FIa r¡n Ing Serv[ces

l-ette r

Page 39



Freedom Mills Ltd
I l^i+ /17
UI IIL - '

Washington Street
Kirkstall
Leeds
LS3 1JQ

Chris Sanderson
Principal Compliance Officer
www.leeds.gov.uk

CITY COUNCIL

Planning Services
Merrion House
110 Merrion Centre
LEEDS
I eâ oÞÞL\)2. (JulJ

Contact: Chris Sar'¡derson
Tel: 01 13 3788069
Fax: 01 13 2478230

Leeds

lf \\:*.1

Your Ref:
Our Ref: Licence Applications

Date 27th February 2018
Dear Sir/Madam,

Subject: APPLICAT'ION FOR.PREM[SES l-¡CENCE

Thank you for submitting your application for licensed activities at:

Name of venue:- Freedom Mills

Address:- Unit47, Washington Street, Kirkstall, Leeds, LS3 1JQ.

We write to in relation to your recent application for an entertainment licence at the above
premises.

Although Planning Services have not formerly objected to the licence application, I must
advise you that the use of the premises proposed in your application does not have planning
permission.

Therefore this issue in relation to the premises not having the appropriate planning approval
must be addressed as a matter of urgency and a planning application submitted.

The submission of a planning application must not be taken as an indication that consent
would necessarily be forthcoming.

Should you wish to discuss this matter further, please do not hesitate to contact me further
on the above telephone number.

Thank you for your assistance in this matter

Yours faithfully

switchboard :0113 234 B0B0 IN\TESTOR IN.' PDOPLEPage 40



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  

            Leeds District Licensing Department

Leeds District Licensing Department 
First Floor 
Elland Road DHQ 
Elland Road 
Leeds 
LS11 8BU 

Tel:   
Email: 

Your ref:   
Our ref:   

28th February 2018 

Freedom Mills Ltd 
Unit 47, Washington Street 
Leeds 
LS3 1JQ 

cc. Entertainment Licensing Section. Leeds City Council, Civic Hall, Leeds. LS1 1UR

RE: FREEDOM MILLS, UNIT 47, WASHINGTON STREET, LEEDS, LS3 1JQ 
APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE – LICENSING ACT 2003: 
POLICE – LETTER OF REPRESENTATION – ‘QUALIFIED’ OBJECTION: 

Thank you for submitting your application for the above premises. 

West Yorkshire Police are of the opinion that your application contains insufficient information about how 
you intend to meet the licensing objectives. 
We therefore confirm that we are submitting a formal representation against your application on the 
grounds of-: 

1. the prevention of crime & disorder
2. public safety

However, we are of the opinion that the licensing objectives could be met should you be prepared to 
incorporate certain identified measures within your operating schedule as conditions.  

Please find enclosed a document which at Part 1 contains the suggested measures which this authority 
considers are proportionate and appropriate to the nature of your application.  

Page 41

20035990_3
Text Box
Appendix D



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 
 

Should you be in agreement with the suggested measures then please signify this by completing and 
signing Part 2 of the enclosed form and return the complete document to this office as soon as possible. 
Upon receipt of your consent at Part 2, it will be taken that you signify your wishes for the licensing 
authority to amend your operating schedule to incorporate the proposed measures as conditions. 
 
Alternatively should you disagree with the proposed measures, then please complete Part 3 and again 
return the complete document to this office as soon as possible.  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
  

PART 1 - to be completed by the Responsible Authority: 
 
West Yorkshire Police propose the following control measures / conditions under the Licensing Act 
2003 (in addition to those that you may have already offered), for the premises-: 
 
FREEDOM MILLS 
UNIT 47, WASHINGTON STREET 
LEEDS 
LS3 1JQ 
 
Having considered the application under the Licensing Act 2003 for the above premises, West Yorkshire 
Police considers that the following measures are relevant, proportionate and necessary in order to 
promote the following licensing objectives-: 
 

 the prevention of crime & disorder 
 public safety 
 

Measures / Additional measures proposed: 
 
 

 Drinks and open containers of alcohol will not be allowed to be taken outside the premises. 
 

 The Designated Premises Supervisor shall undertake a risk assessment of any significant event (as 
defined below - other than regular DJ, event or promotion) using the West Yorkshire Police Promotion 
/ Event Risk Assessment Form or equivalent and provide a copy to West Yorkshire Police and the 
Licensing Authority not less than 10 working days before the event is due to take place. 

 
 The definition of a "significant event" - a significant event is any occasion in a premises licensed under 

the provision of the Licensing Act 2003, where there will be a live performer(s) meaning musicians, 
DJs, MCs or other artiste that is promoted in some form by either the venue or an outside promoter, 
where entry is free, by invitation, pay on the door or by ticket. This includes boxing events. 
 

 The Designated Premises Supervisor or a personal licence holder will be on duty for any such event. 
 

 
 
 
 
West Yorkshire Police are satisfied that the proposed measures are not adequately dealt with by other 
legislation. 
 
By signing the declaration enclosed overleaf at Part 2, the applicant agrees to incorporate the proposed 
measures as conditions within the Operating Schedule for the said premises.   
 

Page 42



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 
 

Upon the satisfactory completion of the declaration, West Yorkshire Police will provide notice to the 
Licensing Authority that our representation is withdrawn in accordance with schedule 10(a) of the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PC 5548 Cath Arkle 
Leeds District Licensing Officer 
West Yorkshire Police 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 
 

PART 2 – to be completed by the applicant or applicant’s representative: 
 
Consent for all proposed control measures / conditions under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
Name & Address of Premises: 
 
FREEDOM MILLS 
UNIT 47, WASHINGTON STREET 
LEEDS 
LS3 1JQ 
 
I / We ………JOSHUA THREFALL 
 
 
confirm that I am / we are the applicant /   the applicants representative (delete as appropriate) for the 
premises as stated above. 
 
 
In signing this document-: 

 I / we agree with the measures proposed by West Yorkshire Police,  
 I / we provide our consent for the Licensing Authority to incorporate the said measures into the 

operating schedule for the stated premises as conditions, and furthermore, 
 I / we confirm the premises will then operate in accordance with those conditions agreed to. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: J.THRELFALL 
 
 
Dated: 28/02/2018 
 

Page 44



 
Issued premises licences and club 
certificates within an area 

 
 
 
PREM/04062/001 - Blueberry Hill Studios, Unit 11, Kirkstall Industrial Park, Kirkstall Road, 
Burley, Leeds, LS4 2AZ 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Friday & Saturday 11:00 - 04:00 
 Sunday to Thursday 11:00 - 23:30 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Friday & Saturday 23:00 - 04:00 
 Sunday to Thursday 23:00 - 00:01 
Performance of recorded music 
 Friday & Saturday 10:00 - 04:00 
 Sunday to Thursday 10:00 - 00:01 
 
PREM/01039/V01 - Stateside American Cafe Bar And Northern Snooker Centre, 92 
Kirkstall Road, Leeds, LS3 1LT 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 10:00 - 01:30 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 05:00 
Indoor sporting events 
 Every Day 09:00 - 00:00 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 09:30 - 01:30 
 
PREM/00790/006 - Napoleons Casino, 2 Bingley Street, Leeds, LS3 1LX 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 05:00 
Performance of live music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Entertainment similar to live music, recorded music or dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
 
PREM/04135/001 - Mylahore, 90 Kirkstall Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1LT 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Friday & Saturday 23:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday to Thursday 23:00 - 00:00 
Performance of live music 
 Monday to Thursday 12:00 - 00:00 
 Friday 12:00 - 01:00 
 Saturday 13:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 13:00 - 00:00 
 

Page 45

20046853_1
Text Box
Appendix E



PREM/02545/002 - ITV Yorkshire, Television Centre, Kirkstall Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 
1JS 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 05:00 
Performance of a play 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Exhibition of a film 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Indoor sporting events 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of live music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Entertainment similar to live music, recorded music or dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
 
PREM/02543/002 - Yorkshire Television, Yorkshire Television Ltd, 27 Burley Road, Burley, 
Leeds, LS3 1JT 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 05:00 
Performance of a play 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Exhibition of a film 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Indoor sporting events 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of live music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Performance of dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Entertainment similar to live music, recorded music or dance 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
 
PREM/02413 - Triangle, Unit 1, The Triangle, 2 Burley Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1JB 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Monday to Wednesday 08:00 - 01:00 
 Thursday to Saturday 08:00 - 02:00 
 Sunday 08:00 - 00:00 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Monday to Wednesday 23:00 - 01:00 
 Thursday to Saturday 23:00 - 02:00 
 Sunday 23:00 - 00:00 

Page 46



Performance of recorded music 
 Monday to Wednesday 08:00 - 01:00 
 Thursday to Saturday 08:00 - 02:00 
 Sunday 08:00 - 00:00 
 
PREM/01771/002 - Nisa Stores, The Tannery Building, Cavendish Street, Woodhouse, 
Leeds, LS3 1AF 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Monday to Saturday 08:00 - 23:00 
 Sunday 10:00 - 22:30 
 
PREM/01741 - Holiday Inn Express, Cavendish Street, Woodhouse, Leeds, LS3 1LY 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Monday to Saturday 11:00 - 23:00 
 Sunday 12:00 - 22:30 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
 
PREM/02731/015 - Premier, 70 Burley Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1JX 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 00:00 - 23:59 
Provision of late night refreshment (In respect of the small takeaway unit located towards the 
rear of the premises only.) 
 Every Day 23:00 - 02:00 
 
PREM/04001/001 - Witch Craft Beers Limited, Unit 1, Scotch Park Trading Estate, Forge 
Lane, Armley, Leeds, LS12 2PY 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 00:01 - 00:00 
 
PREM/04014/003 - Go Gold Local, 4 Cavendish Street, Woodhouse, Leeds, LS3 1LY 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 08:30 - 23:00 
 
PREM/03868/001 - Co-operative Group Food Limited, 46 Burley Street, Burley, Leeds, LS3 
1LB,  
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 06:00 - 23:00 
 
PREM/03817/001 - Emmerdale Studio Experience, 27 Burley Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 
1JT 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 09:30 - 00:00 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 00:00 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 10:00 - 19:00 
Entertainment similar to live music, recorded music or dance 
 Every Day 10:00 - 19:00 
 

Page 47



PREM/03777/001 - 100 Kirkstall Road, 100 Kirkstall Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1HJ 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Monday to Thursday 08:00 - 00:30 
 Friday & Saturday 08:00 - 01:30 
 Sunday 10:00 - 00:30 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Friday & Saturday 23:00 - 01:30 
 Sunday to Thursday 23:00 - 00:30 
Performance of live music 
 Every Day 12:00 - 23:00 
Performance of recorded music 
 Monday to Friday 11:00 - 00:00 
 Saturday 11:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 12:00 - 00:00 
 
PREM/03640/001 - Dominos, The Triangle, 2 Burley Road, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1JB 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 05:00 
 
PREM/02128 - Maxis Chinese Restaurant, Restaurant Maxis (Yorkshire) Ltd, Bingley 
Street, Burley, Leeds, LS3 1LX 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Monday to Saturday 11:00 - 00:00 
 Sunday 12:00 - 23:30 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 00:01 - 00:00 
 
 

Page 48



Report of the Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee

Date: 22nd May 2018

Subject: Application for the grant of a premises licence for Restaurant 152 
Harrogate Road, Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 6AH

Are specific electoral Wards affected?   Yes   No

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): Otley & Yeadon

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration?

  Yes   No

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No
If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number:
Appendix number:

Summary of main issues 

This is an application for the grant of a premises licence, made by Mr Resul Kaftar, for 
Restaurant 152 Harrogate Road, Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 6AH,

Responsible authorities and Ward Members have been notified of this application.

The application has attracted representations from other persons and responsible 
authorities.

1

Report author: Mr Shaam Amin
0113 378 5029

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



1 Purpose of this report

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under section 17 of the Licensing Act 
2003 ("the Act") for a new premises licence in respect of the above mentioned 
premises.

1.2 Members are required to consider this application due to the receipt of 
representations.

2 History of the premises

2.1 This is the first application for a premises licence for these premises.

3 The application

3.1 The applicant’s name is Mr Resul Kaftar,

3.2 The proposed designated premises supervisor is Mr Resul Kaftar

3.3 In summary the application is for:

Recorded Music, Performance of Dance, Supply of Alcohol 

Every Day 11:00 until 00:00 

Late Night Refreshment 

Every Day 23:00 until 00:00

4 The operating schedule

4.1 The applicant proposes to promote the licensing objectives by taking the steps 
identified in the operating schedule which is attached at Appendix A.

5 Location

5.1 A map which identifies the location of this premises is attached at Appendix B.

6 Representations

6.1 Under the Act representations can be received from responsible authorities or 
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of another 
person, must not be frivolous or vexatious.

Representations from Responsible Authorities

6.2 Representations have been received from Health & Safety and the West 
Yorkshire Police in their capacity as responsible authorities copies of which may 
be found at Appendix C.

2Page 50



6.3 Any representations may be negotiated prior to the hearing.  In this instance the 
operating schedule has been amended to include the measures outlined in 
Appendix C from Health & Safety and the West Yorkshire Police. Copies of the 
withdrawal of their representation may be found at Appendix D. 

Other representations

6.4 The application has attracted representation from members of the public 
(described as ‘other persons’ in the legislation).

6.5 The licensing authority is in receipt of six individual letters of objection all of which 
are opposed to this application on the grounds of public nuisance.

6.6 In order to protect personal data, redacted copies of the representations are 
attached at Appendix E.  Unredacted copies will be available at the hearing for 
Members consideration.

7 Licensing hours

7.1 Members are directed to paragraphs 6.8 to 6.15 of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy which states the criteria that will be applied to any decision for new 
applications or variations which include extending hours.

7.2 In brief the Policy states at 6.14 that restrictions may be made to the proposed 
hours of use where, after receiving relevant representations, the council considers 
it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to do so. 

7.3 The council will take into account the existing pattern of licensed premises in an 
area when considering what is appropriate to promote the objectives. Applications 
which are significantly out of character for a locality will need to demonstrate that 
granting the hours sought will not adversely impact on the licensing objectives.

7.4 A list of premises in the local area and their licensed hours and activities is 
provided at Appendix F.

8 Equality and diversity implications

8.1 At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and 
diversity. Any decision taken by the licensing subcommittee will be in accordance 
with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act 2003.

9 Options available to Members

9.1 The Licensing Sub Committee must take such of the following steps as it 
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

 Grant the application as requested.
 Grant the application whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering in 

any way the proposed operating schedule.
 Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates.
 Refuse to specify the said person as the designated premises supervisor. 
 Reject the whole or part of the application.

3Page 51



9.2 Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are asked to note that they may not 
reject the whole or part of the application merely because they consider it 
desirable to do so. It must be appropriate in order to promote the licensing 
objectives.

10 Background papers

 Guidance issued under s182 Licensing Act 2003
 Leeds City Council Statement of Licensing Policy

4Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64
















1

9

7

4

2

3

5

6

8

Cold Harbour Farm

Moorfield Business Park

A

Fold

Estate

B
C

Pond

Manor

Works

5

9

1

1

1

9

1

2
9

4

9

1

13

4

2

9

2

5
2

2

1

2

1

4

1

8

1

7

1
1

4

8

1

1

6

2

7

1

2

2

5

2

2

6

1

1

2

1

2

3

1 2

8

8

1

2

2

3

1

1

1

5

7

6

6

6

6

9

4

1

1

4

1

7

4

5

1

1

1

7

2

4

3

1

1

2

9

4

White Swan

Yeadon Stoops

Premier Stores

Yeadon Cricket Club

Yorkshire Aeroplane Club

Murgatroyds Fish Restaurant

Restaurant

Appendix B

On licence

Off licence

Late night
refreshment

Other

KeyThis map is based upon the Ordinance Survey’s digital data with the 
permission of the Ordinance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationary Office
© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and 
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings
Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 1000019567
© Crown Copyright all rights reserved Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



lssued premises licences and club
certificates within an area

PREM/00185/011 - White Swan, High Street, Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 7TA

Sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Wednesday
Thursday to Saturday
Sunday

Performance of live music
Monday to Saturday
Sunday

Performance of recorded music
Monday to Wednesday
Thursday to Saturday
Sunday

Sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Sunday

Performance of live music
Monday to Thursday
Friday & Saturday
Sunday

Performance of recorded music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday to Thursday

Sale by retail of alcohol
Monday to Saturday
Sunday

Performance of recorded music
Every Day

Lceds
Appendix F

CITY COUNCIL

11:00 - 23:30
11:00 - 00:30
12:00 - 23:30

11:00 - 23:00
12:0O - 23:00

11:00 - 23:30
11:00 - 00:30
12:00 - 23:30

11:00 - 23:00
11:00 - 00:00
12:00 - 23:00

11:00 - 23:00
11:00 - 00:00
12:OO - 23:00

08:00 - 00:00
08:00 - 23:00

10:00 - 00:00
12:00 - 23:30

00:00 - 23.59

PREM/00701/003 - Yorkshire Aeroplane Glub, Multiflight Ltd, South Side Aviation, Leeds
Bradford lnternational Airport, Leeds, LS19 7UG

PREM/00585 - Murgatroyds Fish Restaurant, Moorfield lnd Estate, Moorfield Road,
Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 7BN

Page 83



PREM/012751005 - Yeadon Stoops, Bayton Lane, Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 6A8

Sale by retail of alcohol
Every Day

Provision of late night refreshment
Every Day

Exhibition of a film
Every Day

lndoor sporting events
Every Day

Performance of live music
Every Day

Performance of recorded music
Every Day

Performance of dance
Every Day

10:00 - 00:30

23:00 - 00:30

10:00 - 00:30

10:00 - 00:30

10:00 - 00:30

10:00 - 00:30

10:00 - 00:30

Page 84



1 

Report of the Head of Elections, Licensing and Registration 

Report to the Licensing Sub Committee 

Date:  Tuesday 22nd May 2018 

Subject:   Application to vary a premises licence held by Botanist Unit 2.42, 67 
Boar Lane, Leeds, LS1 6HW 

  Yes   No Are specific electoral Wards affected?  

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s):  Little London & Woodhouse

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of Main Issues  

This is an application to vary the premises licence held by New World Trading Company 
(UK) Limited for Botanist Unit 2.42, 67 Boar Lane, Leeds, LS1 6HW. 

The application is made to vary the layout of the premises in order to extend the external 
area. It is proposed for the extended area to operate in accordance with the current 
conditions of the operating schedule inclusive of CCTV coverage, drinking and dining to 
cease at midnight, the area being adequately monitored, signage requesting customers to 
keep noise to a minimum and all tables and chairs being removed at the end of each 
evening. 

Members should note that these premises reside within the ‘Amber Zone’ of the Leeds City 
Centre Cumulative Impact Area. 

Responsible authorities and Ward Members have been notified of this application. 

The application has attracted a representation from West Yorkshire Police requesting 
further information on the above mentioned measures.  At the time of writing this report no 
response from the applicant's representative has been received. 

Report author: Mr Matthew Nelson 

0113 378 5029 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



2 

1 Purpose of this Report 

1.1 To advise Members of an application made under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 
2003 ("the Act") to vary a premises licence in respect of the above mentioned 
premises. 

1.2 Members are required to consider this application due to the receipt of a 
representation. 

2 History of Premises 

2.1 An application for the initial grant of this premises licence was received by the 
Licensing Authority on 2nd July 2012. 

2.2 The application attracted representations from both West Yorkshire Police and 
Leeds City Council Health & Safety Service, offering suggested measures to 
uphold the relevant licensing aims.  These measures were agreed by the 
applicant and each authority subsequently withdrew their representation. 

2.3 The application was granted as requested, subject to the agreed measures being 
incorporated in to the operating schedule. 

2.4 Details of the current premises licence including all of the conditions can be 
viewed at Appendix A of this report. 

3 The Application 

3.1 The applicant is New World Trading Company (UK) Limited. 

3.2 In summary the application is to extend the external area to operate in 
accordance with the conditions already attached to the licence which govern its 
use, including the following: 

 It will be covered by the CCTV system;
 No drinking and dining will be permitted after 00:00 hours;
 The are will be monitored;
 Signs will be displayed requesting customers keep noise to a minimum; and
 All tables and chairs will be removed and stored away at the end of the

evening.

4 The Operating Schedule 

4.1  The applicant considers that the existing measures are sufficient to promote the 
licensing objectives and that no further measures are necessary. 

5 Location 

5.1 A map which identifies the location of these premises is attached at Appendix B. 

Page 86



 3 

6 Representations 

6.1 Under the Act representations can be received from responsible authorities or 
other persons. Representations must be relevant and, in the case of another 
person, must not be frivolous or vexatious. 

Representations from Responsible Authorities 

6.2 The application has attracted a representation from West Yorkshire Police which 
remains outstanding and a matter for Members consideration.  The representation 
requests further information on the measures governing the use the external area, 
a copy of which can be viewed at Appendix C of this report. 

Other representations 

6.3 There are no other representations. 

7 Cumulative Impact Policy 

7.1 The premises are located within the ‘Amber Zone' of the Leeds City Council 
 Cumulative Impact Area. 

7.2 Cumulative impact means the potential impact on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives due to significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one 
area. 

7.3 An applicant wishing to vary a licence for premises which fall within any of the 
cumulative impact areas must identify, through their operating schedule, the steps 
they intend to take so that the council and responsible authorities can be satisfied 
that granting this variation would not add to the impact already being experienced. 

7.4 Details of the cumulative impact policy specific to this area and an outline of the 
evidence behind the reason for setting this policy is attached at Appendix D. 

7.5 Members are directed to paragraphs 7.67 to 7.70 of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy which provides examples of how an application may be considered as 
demonstrating there will be no impact on the licensing objectives and the matters 
that the council would not normally take into consideration. 

8 Equality and Diversity Implications 

8.1 At the time of writing this report there were no implications for equality and 
diversity.  Any decision taken by the licensing subcommittee will be in accordance 
with the four licensing objectives as prescribed by the Licensing Act 2003. 

9 Options Available to Members 

9.1 The licensing subcommittee must take such of the following steps as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 Grant the variation as requested. 

Page 87



 4 

 Grant the variation whilst imposing additional conditions and/or altering in any 
way the proposed operating schedule. 

 Exclude any licensable activities to which the application relates. 
 Reject the whole or part of the application. 
 

9.2 Members of the licensing subcommittee are asked to note that they may not 
modify the conditions or reject the whole or part of the application merely because 
it considers it desirable to do so. It must actually be appropriate in order to 
promote the licensing objectives. 

10 Background Papers 

 Guidance issued under s182 Licensing Act 2003 
 Statement of Licensing Policy 

 

Page 88



 

Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 1 of 8 

Details of premises licence  
 
For: Botanist 

 
 
 
 
This document provides details of the premises licence issued to the stated premises and is 
not a licence itself. 
 
Licence number:  PREM/03213/004 
 
Premises the licence relates to: Botanist, Unit 2.42, 67 Boar Lane, Leeds, 

LS1 6HW 
 
Date licence first effective:  16th August 2012 
 
Date current version effective from:  23rd November 2017 
 
Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol 
 Every Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 
Provision of late night refreshment 
 Every Day 23:00 - 02:30 
 
Performance of live music 
 Every Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 
Performance of recorded music 
 Every Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 
Opening hours of the premises: 
 
Everyday 08:00 - 02:30 
 
Premises licence holder(s): 
 
New World Trading Company (UK) Limited, 2 Malt Street, Knutsford, Cheshire, WA16 6ES 
 
Designated premises supervisor: 
 
Elliot Fox 
 
Access to the premises by children 
 
Access to the premises by children is restricted

Page 89

20035990_4
Text Box
Appendix APremises Licence Details



 

Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 2 of 8 

 
Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 
 
 1. Only individuals licensed by the Security Industry Authority may be used at the premises to 

guard against:- 
  
 a. unauthorised access or occupation (e.g. through door supervision), or  
 b. outbreaks of disorder, or 
 c. damage 
 
 2. No supply of alcohol may be made under this licence 
  
 a. At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

 licence, or 
  
 b. At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or 

 his personal licence is suspended. 
 
 3. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person 

who holds a personal licence. 
 
 4. The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange 

or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
  
 In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, 

or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of 
alcohol for consumption on the premises - 

  
 a. games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or

 encourage individuals to - 
  
  i. drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 

  supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the  
  responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

  ii. drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
  
 b. provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

 discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a 
 manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

  
 c. provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or 

 reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a 
 manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

  
 d. selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

 vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
 glamorize anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any 
 favourable manner. 

  
 e. dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where 

 that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability). 
 
 5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
 6. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

  

Page 90



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 3 of 8 

 The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the 
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy. 

  
 The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years 

of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being 
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date or birth and either - 

  
 a. a holographic mark, or 
  
 b. an ultraviolet feature. 
 
 7. The responsible person must ensure that - 
  
 a. where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

 premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 
 ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 
 following measures: 

  
  i. beer or cider: ½ pint; 
  ii. gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
  iii. still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
  
 b. these measures are displayed in a menu; price list or other printed material which is 

 available to customers on the premises; and 
  
 c. where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol 

 to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
 8. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
   
 For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 of this condition - 
   
 a.  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
   
 b.  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D + (D×V) where -  
  i.  P is the permitted price, 
  ii. D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty  

  were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
  iii.  V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

  value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
   
 c. "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

 premises licence - 
  i. the holder of the premises licence, 
  ii. the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
  iii. the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under  

  such a licence; 
  
 d. "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 

 club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises 
 in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; 
 and 

   
 e. "value added tax" mean value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

 Tax Act 1994. 
  
 Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be 
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

  

Page 91



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 4 of 8 

 (1)  Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of 
 paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on 
 the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value 
 added tax. 

  
 (2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 

 alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the 
 second day. 

 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
Additional details in respect of licensable activities authorised by this licence 
 
Provision of late night refreshment 

 
Location of activity: Indoors 
 
Performance of live music 

 
Location of activity: Both indoors and outdoors 
 
Performance of recorded music 

 
Location of activity: Both indoors and outdoors 
 
All activities 

 
Non standard timings: From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the 

start of permitted hours on New Year's Day. 
  
 An extra hour on the day when British Summertime begins. 
 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule relating to the licensing objectives 
 
The prevention of crime and disorder 
 
 9. A full CCTV system shall be maintained and operated at the premises with cameras positioned 

both internally and externally. 
 
10. Recorded CCTV images will be maintained and stored for a period of twenty-eight days and 

shall be produced to the Police or Licensing Authority upon request. 
 
11. Signage specifying CCTV is in operation will be displayed. 
 
12. CCTV will be in operation at any time a person is in the premises. Where CCTV is recorded onto 

a hard drive system, any DVDs subsequently produced will be in a format so it can be played 
back on a standard PC or DVD player. 

 
13. Any person left in charge of the premises must be trained in the use of any such CCTV 

equipment, and be able to produce CCTV images to an officer from a responsible authority 
upon request. 

 
14. Plans indicating the position of CCTV cameras to be submitted to WYP prior to the premises 

opening. 
 
15. An appropriate number of SIA registered door staff shall be employed at the premises from 

9pm onwards. A risk assessment shall be carried out to determine the number of door staff who 
shall be on duty each evening. 

 
16. A register of those door staff employed shall be maintained at the premises and shall include: 

Page 92



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 5 of 8 

 (i)  the number of door staff on duty; 
 (ii)  the identity of each member of door staff; 
 (iii)  the times the door staff are on duty. 
 
17. Any person who appears to be intoxicated or who is behaving in a disorderly manner will not be 

allowed entry to the venue. Any person within the venue who appears to be intoxicated or who 
is behaving in a disorderly manner will be given care and consideration when being asked to 
leave the venue. 

 
18. The Premises Licence Holder will adopt a zero tolerance policy towards illegal drugs within the 

premises. 
 
19. Not to allow entry to the premises of any person who is notified to the DPS by WYP as being a 

person of bad character by way of association to other persons or by conviction of the courts. 
 
20. Food shall be available until 22:00 daily. 
 
21. A suitable Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) system will be operational at the premises at all 

times when licensable activities are being carried out and at any other times where members of 
the public are present on the premises. 

 
22. The CCTV system will cover all areas of the premises occupied by the public under the terms of 

the licence, including corridors and stairways (excluding WCs and changing rooms). 
 
23. The CCTV system will cover the main entrance/s and exit/s and designated emergency egress 

routes from the premises. 
 
24. The CCTV system will be adequately maintained and be capable of transporting recorded 

material onto a removable media. 
 
25. The CCTV system will contain the correct time and date stamp information. 
 
26. The CCTV system will have sufficient storage retention capacity for a minimum of 31 days 

continuous footage which will be of good quality. 
 
27. A designated member / members of staff at the premises will be authorised to access the CCTV 

footage and be conversant with operating the CCTV system.  At the request of an authorised 
officer of the Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority (under the Licensing Act 2003) any 
CCTV footage, as requested, will be downloaded immediately or secured to prevent any 
overwriting. The CCTV footage material will be supplied, on request, to an authorised officer of 
the Licensing Authority or a Responsible Authority. 

 
28. The CCTV system will cover all external areas of the premises occupied by the public, i.e. 

queuing areas, beer gardens, smoking areas and car parks. 
 
29. A Supervisor's Register will be maintained at the licensed premises, showing the names, 

addresses and up-to-date contact details for the DPS and all personal licence holders. 
 
30. The Supervisors Register will state the name of the person who is in overall charge of the 

premises at each time that licensed activities are carried out, and this information will be 
retained for a period of twelve months and produced for inspection on request to an authorised 
officer. 

 
31. The PLH/DPS will ensure that an Incident Report Register is maintained on the premises to 

record incidents such as anti social behaviour, admissions refusals and ejections from the 
premises. 

 
32. The Incident Report Register will contain consecutively numbered pages, the date time and 

location of the incident, details of the nature of the incident, the names and registration 
numbers of any door staff involved or to whom the incident was reported, the names and 
personal licence numbers (if any) of any other staff involved or to whom the incident was 

Page 93



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 6 of 8 

reported, the names and numbers of any police officers attending, the police incident and / or 
crime number, names and addresses of any witnesses and confirmation of whether there is 
CCTV footage of the incident. 

 
33. The Incident Report Register will be produced for inspection immediately on the request of an 

authorised officer. 
 
34. A policy for searching patrons at the entrance to premises will be adopted and prominently 

displayed on the premises. 
 
35. A suitable purpose-made receptacle for the safe retention of illegal substances will be provided 

and arrangements made for the safe disposal of its contents as agreed with West Yorkshire 
Police or British Transport Police. 

 
36. There will be a communication link via radio to other venues in the city centre. This will be the 

system recognised by the current Business Crime Reduction Partnership for the city, Leeds City 
Council and West Yorkshire Police 

 
37. Such communication link will be kept in working order at all times when licensable activities are 

taking place 
 
38. The communication link will be available to the Designated Premises Supervisor or other 

nominated supervisor and be monitored by that person at all times that licensed activities are 
being carried out. 

 
39. Plastic or toughened polycarbonate (or similar) glasses/bottles will be used when requested by 

West Yorkshire Police / British Transport Police (e.g. football match days) 
 
40. The PLH/DPS staff will ask for proof of age from any person appearing to be under the age of 

21 who attempts to purchase alcohol at the premises. 
 
41. Drinks, open bottles and glasses will not be taken from the curtilage premises at any time. 

Empty bottles and glasses will be collected regularly and promptly. Glass and other sharp 
objects will be stored and disposed of safely using suitable receptacles. Receptacles will be 
secured and not accessible to the customers. 

 
42. The PLH/DPS will prominently display notices which inform customers that open bottles or 

glasses may not be taken off the premises 
 
43. The PLH/DPS will belong to a recognised trade body or Pub Watch Scheme where one exists, 

whose aims include the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
44. The layout of the premises will be  substantially as depicted on the plan submitted in support of 

the application for the new premises licence. This includes the seating depicted thereon, and 
any application to vary the layout will be subject to prior consultation with West Yorkshire 
Police. 

 
Public safety 
 
45. A first aid box will be available at the premises at all times. 
 
46. The occupancy capacity of the premises shall be identified by way of a risk assessment in 

conjunction with the Fire Authority. 
 
47. The numbers and deployment of bar staff shall be identified by way of Risk Assessment. 
 
48. Regular safety checks shall be carried out by staff. 
 
49. Management shall liaise with the Fire Authority as necessary to ensure compliance with all 

necessary fire regulations. 
 

Page 94



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 7 of 8 

50. The premises shall maintain an Incident log. 
 
The prevention of public nuisance 
 
51. Noise from amplified music shall not be such as to cause noise nuisance to the occupants of 

nearby premises. 
 
52. Waste collection services shall be facilitated by the Trinity central service system. 
 
53. A Dispersal Policy will be formulated and adhered to. 
 
54. A queue management policy will be formulated and adhered to. 
 
55. Smokers will be directed to the designated smoking area . A Smoking Policy shall be formulated 

and adhered to. 
 
56. The exterior of the building shall be cleared of litter during non-operational hours prior to 

opening and whilst the premises is open. 
 
57. Notices will be positioned at the exits to the building requesting customers to leave in a quiet 

manner having regard to the occupants of nearby premises. 
 
58. After 23:00 doors and windows at the premises are to remain closed whilst any form of 

regulated entertainment is taking place, save for access and egress. 
 
59. Music - consideration will be given to the volume levels, type of music played coupled with the 

usage of lighting levels designed to encourage the gradual dispersal of patrons during the last 
part of the evening. 

 
60. At the end of the evening management and staff will assist with the orderly and gradual 

dispersal of patrons. 
 
61. Staff members (including door personnel if any) will advise patrons to leave the premises 

quickly and quietly out of respect for our neighbours. 
 
62. Notices will be displayed requesting our customers to leave quietly and in an orderly manner 

out of consideration  to neighbours and their attention will be drawn to these notices by 
members of staff. 

 
63. We will ensure the removal of all bottles and drinking receptacles from any patron before 

exiting the premises. 
 
64. We will actively discourage our customers from assembling outside the premises at the end of 

the evening. 
 
65. We will come to an arrangement with a private hire taxi firm whose telephone number will be 

provided to customers to use on the basis that such company will operate a ring back system 
and not sound horns when collecting their fare. Any patrons awaiting the arrival of a taxi will be 
encouraged to wait inside the premises. 

 
66. Consideration will also be given to staff departures. Staff will be instructed to leave the 

premises quietly and to request that any waiting taxis do not leave their engines running or 
sound their horns whilst waiting. 

 
67. Staff will monitor any queuing for entry to the premises and ensure so far as is possible that 

any noise from queuing patrons is kept to a minimum. 
 
68. At least one CCTV camera will be positioned at the entrance of the premises to capture images 

of all customers entering or leaving. 
 

Page 95



Details of licence numbered : PREM/03213/004 Page 8 of 8 

69. Any person who tries to gain entry to the premises and appears intoxicated or who is involved 
in disorderly conduct shall be denied access to the premises. 

 
70. A delineated smoking area will be provided for those patrons of the premises who wish to 

smoke. 
 
71. The smoking area will be in range of the CCTV system. 
 
72. No drinks will be allowed in the smoking area after 00:00 hours 
 
73. Management will ensure that a nominated  member of staff will supervise the smoking area 

after 00:00 hours. 
 
74. Suitable receptacles will be provided and maintained  for the disposal of cigarette litter within 

the smoking area. 
 
75. Signs will be displayed within the smoking area requesting customers keep noise to a minimum. 
 
76. Patrons who disregard signage and/or verbal instructions may not be readmitted to the 

premises and may be barred from the premises in future. 
 
77. A designated member of staff will be employed to monitor the outside area whilst it is in use. 
 
78. Waiter/waitress service will be provided. Members of staff will ensure that tables are cleared 

quickly, and all glass removed at regular intervals. 
 
79. No open containers will be allowed to be taken for consumption from the outside seating area. 
 
80. Drinking and dining use of the external seating area will cease at 00:00. 
 
81. The area will be in range of the premises CCTV system. 
 
82. There will be no regulated entertainment permitted outside the premises beyond midnight. 
 
83. Tables and chairs will be cleared of diners and drinkers by midnight. 
 
84. At the end of the evening all tables and chairs will be removed and stored away. 
 
85. Prior to the premises commencing trade a Smoking Policy will be formulated and delivered to 

the Environmental Protection Team at Leeds City Council. 
 
Protection of children from harm 
 
86. A "Challenge 21" Policy shall be implemented and maintained at the premises. 
 
87. All staff will be trained in the law regarding the sale of alcohol to underage persons. This 

training will be documented and repeated at six monthly intervals. 
 
88. The venue will only accept photographic driving licences, passports, HM forces cards, National 

Identity  cards or a form of identification with the "PASS" hologram. 
 
89. A Refusals Log to record all attempts to purchase alcohol by those under 18 shall be kept on 

site and all refused sales recorded. The refusals log will be made available to the Police or other 
Responsible Authority on request. 

 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None 
 
 

Page 96



Trinity Leeds

1

4

7

3

6

5
9

8

2

Hotel

Car Park

PH

BOAR LANE

Multistorey

B
R

IG
G

A
T

E

DUNCAN STREET

Central Arcade

48

33

14 16

44 47

13

43
28

40

54

10

71

35

51

15

17

26

12

21

72

31

64

50

46
36

55

29

20
18

70

36.3m

34.0m

LB

Fn

11

Church

5 6

8 9

Sta

SD

34
0

42
5

14
5

404

307

14
4

14
8

164

15
9

167

13
3

10a

15
2

15
5

1 6
1

1 6
6

13
7

14
3

15
7

12
1

12
7

32
8

203

16
0

16
3

15
6

S
T

R
E

E
T

D
ysons C

ham
bers

Equity House

Regent Court

Little Cross Street

T
H

E
 B

O
U

R
S

E

Trevelyan Square

B
A

N
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Hall

A
LB

IO
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

T
R

IN
IT

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Bank

P
osts

2 to 8

1 to 3

12 13

38 36

34 35
48 49

36 38
41 4232 33

Arcade
TCB

COMMERCIAL STREET

TCBs

6 to 2
4

1 
to

 4
6

4 
to

 1
4

9 to 14

29.9m

33.2m

32.9m

34.7m

Shelter

Shelters

42
 to

 4
4

16 to 20

14 to 16

19 to 21

26 to 34

47
 to

 4
9

58 to 63

18
 to

 2
4

33
7

 3
38

406 407

Sub Sta

El Sub

127 to 135

14
0 

to
 1

4
2

320 to 326
204 to 208

408 to 412

Upton's Yard

Rising Bollard

Turk's Head Yard

PH

TCBs

4

1

Posts

715

1

2

7

P
ostsP

osts

TCB

1

TCBs

B
A

N
K

 S
T

R
E

E
T

3

7

2 to 8

1

12

TCB

8

5

9

1

14 to 16

40

4

1

2

11

4

10

21

Shelter

6
2

14

11

TCB

9

8

P
osts

2

14

7

TCB

Shelter
to

45

19

67

El

33
9

42
4

306
403

165

16
2

Queen's Ct

Holy Trinity

16
5

a

45 46

52
 5

3
56

 5
7

N
E

W
 S

TA
TI

O
N

to 1
68

to
 1

5 4
to

 1
58

(PH)

16 to 17

Lambert's

12
9

 to
 1

3
2

22
3

 to
 2

2
6

42
0

 to
 4

2
3

21
6

 to
 2

2
1

33
0

 to
 3

3
4

41
6

 to
 4

1
9

209 to 215

413 to 415308 to 310

14
9

 to
 1

5
0

Hirst's Yard

311 to 319

El Sub Sta

Rising Bollard

Whitelocks (PH)

Queen's Court Chambers

Commercial Court

4 to 28

Yard

22 to 2

QUEENS'S C

C
ha

ng
e 2 

Su

Rising Bollard

PH

Posts

Posts

PH

Posts

Shelter

Posts

ing Bollard

Rising Bollard

TCBs

El Sub

Shelter

127 to

PH

1

Fn

3

Sta

Posts

Not Set

On licence

Off licence

Late night
refreshment

Other

Key
This map is based upon the Ordinance Survey’s digital data with the 
permission of the Ordinance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her 
Majesty’s Stationary Office

© Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and 
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings

Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 1000019567
© Crown Copyright all rights reserved Page 97

20035990_5
Text Box
Appendix BPremises Location



This page is intentionally left blank



 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 
 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED  

            Leeds District Licensing Department 

 
 
 
 
Leeds District Licensing Department 
First Floor 
Elland Road DHQ 
Elland Road 
Leeds 
LS11 8BU 
  
Tel:   0113 3859414 
Email: 
catherine.arkle@westyorkshire.pnn.police.uk 
 

 

25th April 2018 
 
                      
Rebecca Ingram 
Kuit Steinart Levy LLP 
3, St,Mary’s Parsonage 
Manchester 
M3 2RD 
 
 
cc. Entertainment Licensing Section. Leeds City Council, Civic Hall, Leeds. LS1 1UR 
 
 
RE: THE BOTANIST, UNIT 2.42, 67, BOAR LANE, LEEDS, LS1 6HW 
 APPLICATION TO VARY PREMISES LICENCE – LICENSING ACT 2003: 
 POLICE – LETTER OF REPRESENTATION – ‘QUALIFIED’ OBJECTION: 
 
 
Thank you for submitting your application for a new premises licence at the above address. 
 
The premises are situated in an area of the Leeds City Centre, which is currently subject to a policy of 
Cumulative Impact, as identified in the current 2014-2018 Statement of Licensing Policy of Leeds City 
Council. 
This particular area of the City, is classed as being an “amber area”. 
In accordance with the licensing authority’s document quoted above, as an amber area, on receipt of 
relevant representations to promote the licensing objectives, it is the council’s policy to seek additional 
measures, to address the problems associated within that area. 
   
West Yorkshire Police are of the opinion that your application contains insufficient information about how 
you intend to meet the licensing objectives. 
We therefore confirm that we are submitting a formal representation against your application on the 
grounds of-: 
 

1. the prevention of crime & disorder 
2. public safety 

 

Page 99

20035990_6
Text Box
Appendix CWYP Represenation



NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED   
 
 

However, West Yorkshire Police are also of the opinion that the said objectives could be met should you 
be prepared to offer more details around the extra measures you have proposed, those being as below: 
 
 

 It will be covered by the CCTV system at the premises – how many cameras will cover the area 
and where will they be mounted? I understand that both HolyTrinity Church and 71, Boar Lane 
(Burger King) are listed buildings, and therefore may not be able to have cameras fixed to their 
exteriors. 
 

 No drinking and dining will be permitted after 00:00;  
 
 

 The area will be monitored – who will it be monitored by, how long and how often please? 
 
 

 Signs will be displayed requesting customers keep noise to a minimum;  
 
 

 All tables and chairs will be removed and stored away at the end of the evening – the current 
exterior tables and chairs are not stored away. Where will the proposed furniture be stored 
please? 

 
 
When the initial telephone enquiry was made regarding this application I highlighted my particular 
concerns around the issues with drug users in the immediate area. We have seen a spike in calls for 
service around this drug use and in the one month period from 01/02/18 to 01/03/18 we received 71 calls 
for service. Over half of these calls necessitated the attendance of an ambulance, most occurring 
between 11:00hrs and 18:00hrs throughout the week. There are clear clusters of incidents with one 
being Boar Lane and the area around Holy Trinity Church. As such, if the premises licence were to be 
varied and granted to include the extra seating area, customers of The Botanist would be in close 
proximity to all this activity, and West Yorkshire Police would have concerns in relation to an increase in 
crime and disorder, and the undermining of the public safety licensing objective. 
 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Cath Arkle 
PC 5548 
Leeds District Licensing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

Page 100



City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 1 

Area 1 relates to the city centre.  West Yorkshire Police has shared information and statistics that 
show that the nature of the city centre is such that the cumulative impact of licensed premises leads 
to problems that aren’t experienced in other parts of the city and this can be attributed to the 
density of licensed premises in specific areas.  The number and close proximity of venues on a street 
can result in difficulties in identifying individual premises as causing problems and so action planning 
and reviewing individual licences is not possible. 

The closure or opening of businesses can have a dramatic effect on reported crime and incidents in 
an area.  While problems at individual premises are dealt with using action planning and the review 
process, there are areas in Leeds city centre which become saturated as new businesses open or 
existing businesses change their style of operation. 

In addition the council recognises that a previous problem area can be improved by the introduction 
of new styles of business types, such as food led premises like restaurants and seeks to encourage 
this. 

Cumulative Impact Assessment
City Centre 

Page 101

20035990_7
Text Box
Appendix DCIP Evidence



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 2 
 

The dynamic nature of the city centre has created difficulties in setting a policy that will be relevant 
for five years until the next formal review of the Licensing Policy.  Therefore the council has adopted 
an approach of designating areas within the city centre CIP as ‘red’ or ‘amber’ based upon an 
analysis of crime and disorder in the night time economy and will review these areas on an annual 
basis.   
 
Areas that are considered highly saturated and that are experiencing particularly high levels of 
crime, disorder and/or nuisance will be designated as red areas.  The policy states that the council 
will seek to refuse all applications in these red areas on the basis that the impact on the licensing 
objectives is at such a level that the area cannot support any more premises opening or extending 
their operation and that the council will only grant applications in the red zone in exceptional cases. 
Exceptional does not mean that an application is innovative or novel, but that it allows Members to 
make an exception to their policy.  Those exceptional cases would be where the premises can 
demonstrate that they will not impact on the issues already being experienced in the area, i.e. by 
containing their operation within the hours of the daytime and early evening economy.   
 
Any variation that will effectively increase the occupancy of premises will be viewed in a similar light 
to a new application as it may increase the available capacity in the same way a new premises in that 
area would, which in the red area would be unacceptable.  Similarly new businesses seeking to 
introduce a new concept, and so attract different people into the area, may be acceptable in the 
amber area but in the red area the problems are exacerbated by the sheer number of people on the 
street during the peak hours and introducing a new or extended business, even with a different 
concept, would add to the impact rather than reduce it. 
 
Management controls such as door staff will not be adequately effective in preventing an increase in 
the number of people within the red zone.   
 
The amber area is an area which is of concern, based upon an analysis of issues within the night time 
economy that are relevant to the licensing objectives, and the council will expect applicants to offer 
additional measures tailored to the problems in that area.  Applicants are strongly advised to consult 
with West Yorkshire Police and the licensing authority during their application process.  By working 
together, the responsible authorities and businesses can establish working practices that reduce 
crime and disorder and so benefit the long term aims of the city to be a vibrant, thriving economy. 
 
All other areas within the city centre CIP will be designated green areas where good quality 
applications will be generally be more acceptable even though the area is a CIP area.  
 
It is the council’s policy, on receipt of relevant representations, to 
 

• refuse new and variation applications in the red area 
• to seek additional measures for new and variation applications in the amber area 
• to seek good quality applications for application in the green area 
 

This applies to alcohol led premises such as bars, pubs and nightclubs, and for premises seeking late 
night refreshment such as takeaways and late opening restaurants. 
 
Extra scrutiny is given to applications which appear to adopt a number of different styles during their 
trading.  For example businesses that purport to be food led but seek late opening hours may be 
judged to be predominantly alcohol led due to their late night activities.  It is for the applicant to 
demonstrate how their business will not impact on the licensing objectives. 
 

Page 102



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 3 
 

Changes in the last year 
 
There are two distinct areas in the city where extra police resources are deployed on a regular basis.  
These areas are the Call Lane area and the Albion Street/ Woodhouse Lane area.  Premises in those 
areas have deployed street marshals at their own expense in the past as it has been recognised that 
incidents on the street require extra attention and that early intervention can prevent an escalation 
in the severity of incidents on the street.  However in recent years this scheme has fallen away and 
the violent crime rate has increased. 
 
As police resources are reducing each year, priorities have been realigned.  There has been a small 
reduction in the number of arrests for drunk and disorderly again this year but an increase in assault.  
The increase in assaults could be due to early intervention methods being cut back, such as the 
street marshalling scheme and intervention at an early level (i.e. arresting people for being drunk 
and disorderly), and so the low level offences are escalating to the more serious assault charge.   
 
The issues with disorder in the street on Call Lane has led to a road closure between 11pm and 5am 
on the Friday, Saturday and Sunday night which took effect in October 2015.  The sheer numbers of 
people, often intoxicated, in the street during these hours highlights the need for the overall 
capacity of the red area to decrease, not increase.  Further work is ongoing with the operators in 
Hirsts Yard to reduce criminality in this area. 
 
The Council continues to receive applications within the areas designated as red. There has been a 
trend for existing operators to apply for minor and full variations to bring into use areas which were 
unlicensed previously.  In all cases the premises licence holder has undertaken to keep their capacity 
the same.  However this trend for increasing the licensed area is concerning as the ability to control 
capacity is difficult.  Any application seeking an increase in floor space, even without an increase in 
stated capacity, can expect close scrutiny. 
 
Police Crime Reporting 
 
West Yorkshire Police has produced a crime report “Leeds City Centre: Night Time Economy Related 
Crime” dated September 2017 which has been referred to when reviewing the red and amber zones 
for 2017.  This report is referred to as the Police report in this document.  It uses reported crime 
figures from 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017.  The police report only compares statistics from the last two 
years, as the statistics are not comparable going further back than that due to the changes in the 
way in which crime is recorded.    The following data tables and key findings (signified by bullet 
points) have been extracted from the police report.    
 
City Centre 
 

Occurrence Type 
01/09/2015 - 
31/08/2016 

01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 Change +/-  % Change 

Affray 38 52 14 37% 
Assault 1300 1524 224 17% 
Drunk And Disorderly 255 267 12 5% 
Public Order 291 389 98 34% 
Robbery 95 146 51 54% 
Theft From Person 1168 1453 285 24% 
Theft Non Specific 1518 1554 36 2% 
Total 4665 5385 720 15% 

Figure 1 shows the breakdown of occurrence type 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 

Page 103



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 4 
 

 
Licensed Premises Flag 
 

Occurrence Type 
01/09/2015 - 
31/08/2016 

01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 Change +/-  % Change 

Affray 3 4 1 33% 
Assault 251 263 12 5% 
Drunk And Disorderly 15 15 0 0 
Public Order 11 21 10 91% 
Robbery 2 1 -1 -50% 
Theft From Person 488 453 -35 -7% 
Theft Non Specific 537 586 49 9% 

Total 1307 2650 36 103% 
Figure 2 shows the offences flagged as license premises involved 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 

 
Alcohol involved flag 
 

Occurrence Type 
01/09/2015 - 
31/08/2016 

01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 Change +/- % Change 

Affray 14 18 4 29% 
Assault 331 347 16 5% 
Drunk And Disorderly 203 180 -23 -11% 
Public Order 39 59 20 51% 
Robbery 11 15 4 36% 
Theft From Person 43 35 -8 -19% 
Theft Non Specific 27 20 -7 26% 
Total 668 674 6 1% 

Figure 3 shows the offences flagged as alcohol involved 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 
 
Offences by day or night time economy 
 
DTE 
 

Occurrence Type 
01/09/2015 - 
31/08/2016 

01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 Change  

% 
Change 

Affray 6 10 4 67% 
Assault 288 320 32 11% 
Drunk And Disorderly 35 30 -5 -14% 
Public Order 149 214 65 44% 
Robbery 29 38 9 31% 
Theft From Person 352 599 247 70% 
Theft Non Specific 674 705 31 5% 
Total 1533 1916 383 25% 
Figure 4 shows the offences during the DTE (06:00 – 17:59) between 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 

 

Page 104



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 5 
 

NTE 

Occurrence Type 
01/09/2015 - 
31/08/2016 

01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 Change +/-  

% 
Change 

Affray 32 42 10 31% 
Assault 1012 1204 192 19% 
Drunk And Disorderly 220 237 17 8% 
Public Order 142 175 33 23% 
Robbery 66 108 42 64% 
Theft From Person 816 854 38 5% 
Theft Non Specific 844 849 5 5% 
Total 3132 3469 337 11% 

Figure 5 shows the offences during the NTE (18:00 – 05:59) between 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 
 
The tables clearly show that there has been in increase in crime across the city centre.  The police 
report conclusions state: 
 
 An analysis of the examined offences shows overall offending in the City Centre has 

increased by 15% compared with the previous examined period. 
 During 01/09/2016 and 31/08/2017, Assaults and Theft from Person offences have seen the 

highest increases in terms of volume compared with the previous year. Robbery offences 
have experienced the greatest percentage change. All examined offences experienced an 
increase in volume.  

 As seen in previous reporting, Assaults and Theft (Non Specific) have the highest number of 
offences with a licensed premises flag and experienced the greatest increases during the 
period. 

 Assaults continue to be the highest alcohol related crime, followed by Drunk and Disorderly 
offences. While Drunk and Disorderly offences saw a decrease, Public Order offences 
increased.  

 Theft and Assault offences are the top offence categories for both the day time economy 
and night time economy.  

 In both the examined periods there are more reports of ‘off street’ offences than ‘on street’. 
The number of assaults occurring ‘off street’ are fairly similar in both years. There are more 
assaults reported to occur ‘on street’. 

Street Level Data 
 
The tables below relate to Leeds City Centre night time economy offending only (18:00 to 05:59) and 
show the top ten streets and the top ten streets of increasing concern for the night time economy 
offending.  The table shows the percentage of the street compared with the city centre total as 
shown in Figure 5.   
 

Top 10 Street Names 2015 - 
2016 

% of City  
2015-2016 

2016 - 
2017 

% of City  
2016 -2017 

Change 
+/- 

BRIGGATE 572 18.3% 631 18% 59 
CALL LANE 531 17% 565 16.8% 34 
ALBION STREET 263 8.4% 294 8.7% 31 
WOODHOUSE LANE 213 6.8% 248 7.3% 35 
BOAR LANE 140 4.5% 178 5.2% 38 
COOKRIDGE STREET 99 3.2% 116 3.4% 17 
THE HEADROW 88 2.8% 109 3.2% 21 
MERRION STREET 113 3.6% 98 2.9% -15 
GREAT GEORGE ST 76 2.7% 95 2.8% 19 
HEATONS COURT 72 2.3% 79 2.3% 7 

Page 105



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 6 
 

 
Top 10 Street Names 
Of Increasing Concern 

2015 - 
2016 

% of City  
2015-2016 

2016 - 
2017 

% of City  
2016-2017 

Change 
+/- 

BRIGGATE 572 18.3% 631 18% 59 
CALL LANE 531 17% 565 16.8% 34 
ALBION STREET 263 8.4% 294 8.7% 31 
WOODHOUSE LANE 213 6.8% 248 7.3% 35 
BOAR LANE 140 4.1% 178 5.2% 38 
THE HEADROW 88 2.6% 109 3.2% 21 
GREAT GEORGE ST 76 2.2% 95 2.8% 19 
PARK ROW 21 0.6% 40 1.1% 19 
KIRKGATE 27 0.8% 34 1% 7 
BRIDGE END 16 0.5% 30 0.9% 14 

 
These clearly show that there has been no improvement over the last year with Briggate and Call 
Lane areas are responsible for 35% of crime reported in the city in the last year.  16% of crime was 
reported in the other red area of Albion Street/Woodhouse Lane. 
 
The police report conclusions were: 
 
 Briggate, Call Lane, Albion Street and Woodhouse Lane are the top streets for offending in 

the night time economy for both examined periods. These streets are located within the two 
city centre CIP red areas, supporting the view that both red areas should be maintained. 

Red Area Comparisons 
 
The stated crime figures and time analysis is taken from offences occurring within the red outlining 
square, between 18:00 – 05:59.  Assaults, theft from person, theft non-specific, robbery and sexual 
offences have been included in this analysis. 
 
Call Lane Red Area 
 

 
 

Page 106



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 7 
 

NTE: Year 2015– 2016 (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 

 Assault: 420 (+73) 

 Robbery: 27 (+14) 

 Sexual Offences: 26 (+6)  

 Theft From Person: 487 (+77) 

 Theft Non Specific: 382 (+27) 

Time Analysis: 

Peak Time: 00:00 – 05:00 
Risk days: Thursday, Friday and Saturday 

NTE: Year 2016 – 2017 (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 

 Assault: 495 (+75) 

 Robbery: 37 (+10) 

 Sexual Offences: 31 (+5)  

 Theft From Person: 472 (-15) 

 Theft Non Specific: 422 (+40) 

Time Analysis: 

Peak Time: 23:00 – 04:00 
Risk days: Saturday/Sunday highest; also 
Thursday and Friday 

Figure 8: Call Lane red area for the period 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2016 and 01/09/2016 - 31/08/2017 
 
The police report conclusions were: 
 
 The Call Lane red area remains the predominant hot-spot area. Geo-spatial analysis shows 

the main risk area within the city centre is the area of Call Lane and Briggate, as shown as 
Section 7.1. The highest concentration of offences remains in this area and has slightly 
extended compared with the previous 12 months, but still falling within the existing 
designated area. The peak time for offending in the Call Lane area is now 23:00 - 04:00.  

 Within the Call Lane area, all the examined offences namely Assaults, Robberies, Sexual 
Offences and Thefts have increased during 2016 and 2017 with Assaults, Robberies and 
Theft offences seeing the largest increase.   

 
Not only have all crimes increased in this area again this year by another 15%, the peak times have 
shifted from midnight to 5am to 11pm to 4am.  The risk days have changed from Thursday, Friday 
and Saturday to Thursday to Sunday with Saturday and Sunday the highest.  Most worrying are the 
increases in assault and theft from person. 
 
This shows not only how important it is that the number of people using this area during the night 
time does not increase but that it would be desirable for the number of people using this area during 
peak hours to reduce.  Therefore any change to the current licences, either new premises or any 
increase in the operation of the existing premises should not have the effect of increasing visitors to 
the area.  
 
Furthermore the Council will be investigating ways in which assault and theft can be reduced, in 
liaison with the operators and agencies.  LeedsBID has introduced teams of Purple Ambassadors who 
operate in a similar way to the street marshalling scheme, with officers patrolling the red areas and 
dealing with low level nuisance to prevent it from becoming the more serious crime of assault.  
 
In the last year the Licensing Authority has received applications from: 

• a premises on Albion Street  seeking to increase their hours, which was refused; 
• a premises on Hirsts Yard seeking to make structural changes and update conditions which 

was granted 
• a premises on Call Lane which sought to add off sales to their current licence to allow people 

to use an outside area, which was granted 

Page 107



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 8 
 

• a premises on Briggate which sought to increase their floor space but offered a number of 
stricter conditions which controlled capacity which was granted 

• a premises on Briggate seeking a new application for late night refreshment which was 
refused 

• a premises on Call Lane seeking alcohol in conjunction with food and closing prior to peak 
hours which was granted 

• a premises on Call Lane which sought to extend their hours by one hour til midnight.  This 
matter was outstanding as this assessment was finalised. 

 
Any operator seeking a variation to their current licence must be mindful of the problems being 
experienced in the area and must ensure that the additional measures they offer will result in no 
impact on the licensing objectives.  A responsible operator will always be seeking ways in which they 
can contribute to the efforts made to reduce the crime statistics, and would not be satisfied with 
merely maintaining the status quo. 
 
Albion Street / Woodhouse Lane Red Area 
 

 
 

NTE: Year 2015 – 2016  (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 
 Assault: 228 (+64) 
 Robbery: 3 (+2) 
 Sexual Offences: 7  (-2)  
 Theft From Person: 126 (-2) 
 Theft Non Specific:   150 ( +19) 

Time Analysis: 
 Peak: 00:00 - 0400 
 Secondary : 23:00 – 00:00 

 
Risk days: Monday, Friday, Saturday  
 

NTE: Year 2016 – 2017 (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 
 Assault: 251 (+23) 
 Robbery: 8 (+5) 
 Sexual Offences: 14  (+7)  
 Theft From Person: 151 (+25) 
 Theft Non Specific:   147 (-3) 

 
Time Analysis: 
 Peak: 23:00 - 0400 
 Main Peak : 01:00 – 03:00 

 
Risk days: Saturday 
Secondary days: Monday, Tuesday, Thursday 

Figure 9 Map showing the Albion Street red area for the period 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2016 and 01/09/2016 - 
31/08/2017 

Page 108



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 9 
 

The police report conclusions were: 
 
 Within the Albion Street / Woodhouse Lane Red area, the hot-spot areas have remained the 

same in both examined periods, specifically the bottom of Woodhouse Lane and top of 
Albion Street, as shown in Section 7.2.  During the period 2016 to 2017, the peak time is 
shown as between 01:00 – 03:00. 

In the last year the Licensing Authority has received one application from a premises on Albion 
Street seeking to increase their hours, which was refused.   
 
However the overall 9% increase in crime and the lengthening of the peak hours is worrying.  
As with the Call Lane/Lower Briggate area this shows not only how important it is that the number of 
people using this area during the night time does not increase but that it would be desirable for the 
number of people to reduce.  Therefore any change to the current licences, either new premises or 
any increase in the operation of the existing premises should not have the effect of increasing 
visitors to the area.  
 
As with the Call Lane area the Council will be investigating ways in which assault and theft can be 
reduced, in liaison with the operators and agencies.  LeedsBID has introduced teams of Purple 
Ambassadors who operate in a similar way to the street marshalling scheme, with officers patrolling 
the red areas and dealing with low level nuisance to prevent it from becoming the more serious 
crime of assault.  
 
Cross Belgrave Street / Merrion Street / New Briggate: 
 
The following area is not a designated 'red area' in the existing CIP; although, it has been noted as an 
emerging area of popularity during the 'Night Time Economy'. 
 

 
 

Page 109



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 10 
 

NTE: Year 2015 – 2016 (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 
 Assault: 108  (+28) 
 Robbery: 8 (+2) 
 Sexual Offences: 8 (+2)   
 Theft From Person: 96 (+11) 
 Theft Non Specific:  112 (-6) 

 
Time Analysis: 
 Peak: 01:00 – 04:00 

Secondary peak: 23:00 – 00:00 and 
04:00 – 05:00 

 
Risk days: Thursday, Friday and Saturday  
 

NTE: Year 2016 – 2017 (Sept – Aug) 
Crime: 
 Assault: 57  (-51) 
 Robbery: 8 (no change) 
 Sexual Offences: 7 (-1)   
 Theft From Person: 50 (-46) 
 Theft Non Specific:  48 (-64) 

 
 
Time Analysis: 
 Peak: 00:00 – 04:00 

Secondary peak: 23:00 – 00:00 
and 04:00 – 05:00 

 
Risk days: Friday and Saturday  
 

Figure 10: Map showing New Briggate area for the period 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2016 and 01/09/2016 - 31/08/2017 
 
The police report conclusions were: 
 
 The Cross Belgrave Street/Merrion Street/New Briggate areas were noted as an emerging 

area of concern for the period 2015 – 2016 however several associated offence types have 
seen reductions over the last 12 month period. 

As reported in previous years, this area in Leeds has been developed in the north of the city and is 
proving very popular.  The lengthening of the hot spot period is common with the two red areas 
however there has been a dramatic reduction in crime across the board.     
 
This area remains in the amber area this year, as this provides the most flexibility to negotiate with 
applicants regarding safeguards that can be put in place.  . 
 
Night Time Related Offences 

 
The Police Report 
provides two new maps 
which show the overall 
spread of night time 
offences across the 
area.  The 100m Hex 
grid shows that the 
main “hotspot” areas 
detailed previously 
(shown as red 
rectangles on the map) 
cover the main areas of 
concern, and that the 
“emerging” area 
identified previously 
(grey rectangle) is no 
longer covering a major 
offence hotspot.  There 

are also no “new” areas of concern (that would be orange or red) outside the current localities. 

Page 110



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 11 
 

 
The map below shows the density of night-time offences across the defined area and the 
concentration of where offences have occurred, highlighted by darker areas. Briggate (highlighted by 
a dotted line) has the highest density. 
 

 
City Centre A&E Assault data 
 
A&E data was provided for the period 01/09/2016 – 31/08/2017. A notable proportion did not have 
a location address or did not specify an exact address, for example “on street” or “on bus”.  Detailed 
location data is no longer provided therefore the proportion directly associated with the City Centre 
cannot be assessed.  
 
Road Traffic Incidents 
 
The below table shows the breakdown of Road Traffic Incidents 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2017. The 
figures have been derived from the red line area “Leeds City Centre” as shown in Section 3. 
 

  DTE                  NTE     
Incident Type 2015-2016 2016-2017 DTE Total 2015-2016 2016-2017 NTE Total Total 

Highway Disruption 132 142 274 86 68 154 428 
OPL 11 10 21 34 47 81 102 
Road Related Offence 62 93 155 68 67 135 290 
RTC - Damage Only 316 332 648 165 181 346 994 
RTC - Serious Injury 8 14 22 6 6 12 34 

RTC - Slight Injury 96 107 203 54 44 98 301 

Total 625 698 1323 413 413 826 2149 
Figure 12 shows the breakdown of Road Traffic Incidents 01/09/2015 - 31/08/2017. 

Page 111



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 12 
 

 
Day Time Economy – Top Streets 

The below tables show the top ten streets and the top ten streets of increasing concern for road 
traffic incidents during the daytime economy. 

 

Top Ten Street Names  
20

15
 - 

20
16

 

20
16

 - 
20

17
 

Ch
an

ge
 

 

Top 10 Street Names 
Of Increasing Concern 

20
15

 - 
20

16
 

20
16

 - 
20

17
 

Ch
an

ge
 

THE HEADROW 26 43 17 
 

THE HEADROW 26 43 17 
A58 26 40 14 

 
A58 26 40 14 

WELLINGTON ST 26 37 11 
 

WELLINGTON ST 26 37 11 
A58(M) 21 31 10 

 
A58(M) 21 31 10 

INNER RING ROAD 25 30 5 
 

GREAT GEORGE ST 17 29 12 
GREAT GEORGE ST 17 29 12 

 
ALBION ST 15 22 7 

WOODHOUSE LANE 22 24 2 
 

CLAY PIT LANE 14 20 6 
CROWN POINT RD 17 23 6 

 
A61 11 17 6 

ALBION STREET 15 22 7 
 

GEORGE ST 6 11 5 
CLAY PIT LANE 14 20 6 

 
BOAR LANE 8 12 4 

Figure 13 shows the top streets 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 or road traffic incidents during the day 
time economy. 

 
Night Time Economy – Top Streets 
The below tables show the top ten streets and the top ten streets of increasing concern for road 
traffic incidents during the night time economy hours. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Top 10 Street Names 

20
15

 - 
20

16
 

20
16

 - 
20

17
 

Ch
an

ge
 

 

Top 10 Street Names  
of Increasing Concern 

20
15

 - 
20

16
 

20
16

 - 
20

17
 

Ch
an

ge
 

THE HEADROW 19 22 3 
 

SWINEGATE 4 14 10 
WOODHOUSE LANE 21 17 4 

 
BRIGGATE 4 12 8 

ALBION STREET 16 18 2 
 

CROWN POINT RD 4 12 8 
A58 16 16 0 

 
CALL LANE 7 12 5 

BOAR LANE 18 14 -4 
 

GREAT GEORGE ST 12 16 4 
WELLINGTON ST 13 15 2 

 
INNER RING ROAD 12 16 4 

GREAT GEORGE ST 12 16 4 
 

CALVERLEY ST 6 10 4 
INNER RING ROAD 12 16 4 

 
VICAR LANE 3 6 3 

CLAY PIT LANE 13 14 1 
 

MERRION STREET 7 10 3 
A58(M) 11 12 1 

 
PARK SQUARE 0 3 3 

Figure 14 shows the top streets 01/09/2015 – 31/08/2017 for road traffic incidents during the night 
time economy. 

 

Page 112



 
City Centre Cumulative Impact Assessment - December 2017 Page 13 
 

The police report conclusions were: 
 

• During the NTE the main hot-spots for Road Related Incidents were around The Headrow, 
Woodhouse Lane and Albion Street with a smaller concentration around Boar Lane and 
Wellington Street 

 
Conclusion 
 
With the police report conclusions in mind the Licensing Authority has determined that the red areas 
be maintained.  Merrion Street/Cross Belgrave Street area and the Boar Lane areas will continue to 
be closely monitored.   
 
The increase in theft and violent crime in the two red areas is concerning.  The council will work with 
the businesses and partners to establish if further work can be done to reduce these crime figures 
over the next 12 months and to establish is the Purple Ambassador Scheme has a positive effect on 
reducing low level crime and disorder.    
 
The Licensing Committee will bear in mind that in the next 12 months there may be significant 
changes to the way late night levies can be introduced and may also consider the option of an early 
morning restriction order if these figures do not significantly reduce over the next 12 months. 
 

 
The maps in this document are based upon the Ordinance Survey’s digital data with the permission of the 
Ordinance Survey on behalf of the controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office.  © Unauthorised reproduction 
infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings Leeds City Council O.S. Licence No 
1000019567.  © Crown Copyright all rights reserved. 
 
The Police Report produced by Leeds District Analytical Unit is available on request from Entertainment 
Licensing.  

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Application for the grant of a premises licence for Freedom Mills Unit 47, Washington Street, Kirkstall, Leeds, LS3 1JQ.
	Appendix A - Proforma
	Premises Location - Appendix B
	Appendix C - LA Rep
	WYP Representation - Appendix D_Redacted
	Surrounding Premises List - Appendix E

	7 Application for the grant of a premises licence for Restaurant, 152 Harrogate Road, Yeadon, Leeds, LS19 6AH
	01 - Appendix A - Operating Schedule
	02 - Appendix B - MAP
	03 - Appendix C - RA Reps
	Appendix C - H & S
	Appendix C - wyp 

	04 - Appendix D - RA Agreements
	Appendix D - H & S
	Appendix D - WYP

	05 - Appendix E - Public Reps Redacted
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6

	06 - Appendix F - List of Premises

	8 Application to vary a premises licence held by Botanist Unit 2.42, 67 Boar Lane, Leeds, LS1 6HW
	02 Premises Licence Details - Appendix A
	03 Premises Location - Appendix B
	04 WYP Representation - Appendix C
	05 CIP Evidence - Appendix D




